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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S STATEMENT

TTHREREE

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the results of China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the "Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Review

Exploration and Production Segment

Last year, the Group has successfully completed the acquisition (the
“Acquisition”) of the Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong Kong)
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Totalbuild Investments Group”)
which has entered into Petroleum Contract with China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC") for the drilling, exploration,
exploitation and production of oil and/or natural gas within the
specified site located in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, Xinjiang,
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). The term of the Petroleum
Contract is for a term of 30 years commencing 1 June 2009.

According to the Petroleum Contract, the exploration period covers 6
years. The Company have devoted much of its resources during the
period in exploration and research studies.

The development period of any oil/gas field will start from the date of
the completion of the Overall Development Program (“ODP”). ODP is
a document that is required to be approved by the relevant
government authorities before the development can commence. ODP
comprises a formal development engineering plan, backed up by
survey results and relevant studies, together with a full economic
analysis and time schedule of the development operations. The
approval of the ODP was previously expected to be ready by 2011.
However, there was delay in finalizing the ODP documentation and
the preparation of formal reserve report. Base on current information
available to the directors, the directors expect that the ODP should be
ready by 2013 and the production period should start immediately
after obtaining relevant government approval.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S STATEMENT

TTHREREE

After the completion of Acquisition and up to now, the Group has
been carrying out exploration activities at the site. Latest data and
information about the petroleum resources were obtained as a result
of these exploration activities. Further studies were being carried out
with CNPC and other professional parties on such information. The
Group is now working with these professional parties to prepare and
revise the reserve report. The preparation of the formal reserve
report is a part of the ODP which required government approval
before full production could be started. The delay in finalizing the
formal reserve report together with the ODP is the major reason for
the delay in government approval.

During the period subsequent to the Acquisition, we are carrying out
pilot productions with CNPC at the site. 266,290,000 cubic meters of
gas was being extracted in the year 2012. The information obtained
from research and pilot production will form part of the information
to be applied in the ODP. The gas so produced during the pilot
productions has been sold to the local customers by CNPC near the
Site area.

Apart from the delay in ODP, there was a delay in agreement with
CNPC on the Gas Sales Agreement (“GSA"). The GSA with CNPC
covers a number of provisions, such as terms of the GSA, quantity of
volume commitments, gas quality, price terms, delivery obligations
and delivery point, etc. The major point is that the Group is yet to
agree with CNPC on pricing terms. The Group is still trying to
negotiate with CNPC with terms which are more favorable to the
Group. No revenue was recognised during the year.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S STATEMENT

TTHREREE

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The Chinese restaurant in Hong Kong had been facing the high rental
costs and high inflation, together with the persistent increase in raw
materials costs and labour costs pose challenges to the Group. On 31
July 2012, the Group completed the disposal of Ocean Grace
Investment Limited (the “Disposal”) which is principally engaged in
operating a Chinese restaurant in Hong Kong, for an aggregate
consideration of HK$5,900,000 and recorded a gain of HK$5,828,000.
After completion of the Disposal, the Group will continue to operate
the sales of food and beverages business and implement a tighter
cost control on the remaining business.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a
turnover from the sales of food and beverages business of
approximately HK$61,951,000 (2011: HK$73,876,000), an decrease of
16% as compared to the last year. The decrease in turnover was
because the Disposal.

Prospects and Strategy

The Group has been seeking investment opportunities from time to
time to broaden the Group’s sources of income. The success of the
Acquisition of the Totalbuild Investments Group in 2011 enables the
Group to diversify its business into natural resources business. In
2012, China’s economy showed signs of further stabilisation towards
a recovery, and avoid the continuous increase in energy demand and
growing concerns over environmental protection issues, developing
natural gas has become a necessary approach. China issued a series
of "12th Five-Year Plans” for various gas related industries to
encourage the use of natural gas. The country’s natural gas pricing
reforms also witnessed due progress in some regions. Although the
delay in the production of oil/gas in Xinjiang will delay the return for
the capital investment in oil and gas business, the management of
the Group maintains its long-term confidence on the natural gas and
oil industries and the Acquisition will help making the stronger
company and creating value for our shareholders.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S STATEMENT

TTHREREE

Appreciation

Looking forward, we will continue our proven strategy of fostering
opportunity for sustainable growth with the aim of enhancing return
for our shareholder. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to a team of
devoted staff for their outstanding service and to our shareholders for
your continued support.

Zhao Guoqiang
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEFWR S

Operating Results

During the year under review, the Group recorded the turnover from
the food and beverages business of approximately HK$61,951,000
(2011: HK$73,876,000), an decrease of 16% as compared to the last
year. The decrease in turnover was mainly due to the decrease in
revenue as a result of the Disposal of a Chinese restaurant during the
year.

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$36,345,000 compared to a loss of
approximately HK$122,836,000 to the corresponding period in 2011.
Loss per share attributable to the owners of the Company was 0.46
HK cents (2011: 1.80 HK cents).

Business Review

Exploration and Production Segment

The Group has successfully completed the Acquisition of Totalbuild
Investments Group in 2011 which has entered into Petroleum
Contract with CNPC for the drilling, exploration, exploitation and
production of oil and/or natural gas within the specified site located
in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, Xinjiang, PRC. The term of the
Petroleum Contract is for a term of 30 years commencing 1 June
2009.

Under the Petroleum Contract, the Group shall apply its appropriate
and advanced technology and management expertise and assign its
competent experts to perform exploration, development, and
production of natural gas and/or oil within the site. Under the
Petroleum Contract, in the event that any oil field and/or gas field is
discovered within the site, the development costs shall be borne by
CNPC and the Group in the proportion of 51% and 49%, respectively.

According to the Petroleum Contract, the exploration period covers 6
years. The management have devoted much of its resources during
the period in exploration and research studies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEFWR S

The development period of any oil/gas field will start from the date of
the completion of the ODP. ODP is a document that is required to be
approved by the relevant government authorities before the
development can commence. ODP comprises a formal development
engineering plan, backed up by survey results and relevant studies,
together with a full economic analysis and time schedule of the
development operations. The approval of the ODP was previously
expected to be ready by 2011. However, there was delay in finalizing
the ODP documentation and the preparation of formal reserve report.
Base on current information available to the directors, the directors
expect that the ODP should be ready by 2013 and the production
period should start immediately after obtaining relevant government
approval.

After the completion of Acquisition and up to now, the Group has
been carrying out exploration activities at the site. Latest data and
information about the petroleum resources were obtained as a result
of these exploration activities. Further studies were being carried out
with CNPC and other professional parties on such information. The
Group is now working with these professional parties to prepare and
revise the reserve report. The preparation of the formal reserve
report is a part of the ODP which required government approval
before full production could be started. The delay in finalizing the
formal reserve report together with the ODP is the major reason for
the delay in government approval.

During the period subsequent to the Acquisition, we are carrying out
pilot productions with CNPC at the site, 266,290,000 cubic meters of
gas was being extracted in the year 2012. The information obtained
from research and pilot production will form part of the information
to be applied in the ODP. The gas so produced during the pilot
productions has been sold to the local customers by CNPC near the
site area.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEFWR S

As at 31 December 2012, the acquired oil/gas field has approximately
estimated contingent resources of 47.4 million (2011: 47.4 million)
barrels oil and 11,956 million m® (2011: 12,086 million m?3) natural gas
(based on Group's share of participated interests). These contingent
resources are quantities of oil and gas estimated, to be potentially
recoverable from known accumulations by application of
development projects, but which are not currently considered to be
commercially recoverable due to one or more contingencies. The
risks associated with these contingent resources included, (i) no
definitive GSA nor accurate information on likely future sales prices;
(ii) the future overall development program is still to be developed
and approved; and (iii) the field is situated in a remote location.

During the year, the exploration and production segment did not
recognize any revenue and the Group is still negotiating with CNPC
regarding the price term. The segment loss before income tax was
approximately HK$26,332,000 (2011: HK$33,390,000). The results of
operations in exploration and production segment and costs incurred
for exploration and evaluation assets acquisition and exploration
activities are shown as below:

(a) Results of operations in exploration and production
segment

RZE——F+-A=+—08 ChEHEBE
ERBAETREER - 85 47,400,0008 (=2
——%F : 47,400,000 ) A8 & 11,956 B & 32 77K
(ZZ——1F 1 12,086 BB 7 K) KAR (RIEAR
SE N2 MERTE) ZEREBERAMNT
AMRRAREE - UEZFNITERE - mA
BB D B TEREUES - A B AN —IE A
FrRAAE MARBAETHEERK - 5
BZSREERCEBREE  (VRZEENRA
REEHE RSB A IRESERERER | (i)
BB BRERE S ZNEEHE RIUE  Ki)haR
MG MR RS o
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SENERERGRERBAHERER - H Y
B TS H Al ES 1B 40 526,332,000/ 7L ( = ——4F -
33,390,000 7T) - MIEREESE 2 LEEER
BERELEEE  WERDEESELE KA
3T

(@) BIRRLEDIELER

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2012 2011

=F-=F =—F—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Net sales to customers BRFIHERR - -

Other income H A 156 343

Operating expenses KR (25,658) (32,768)

Depreciation e (830) (965)
Results of operations before income BRETSBIF T ATAC & #E4E

tax expenses (26,332) (33,390)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEFWR S

(b) Costs incurred for exploration and evaluation assets
acquisition and exploration activities

(b) REBERRTIEEERBFZHFEELZ
P22

For the year ended
31 December
BEt+t=-A=1+t—HLEE

2012 2011

—E--F —E——1F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Acquisition costs W BE B AR - 559,607
Exploration cost incurred during the year FRNESE ZBREBA 229 21,436
229 581,043

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The Chinese restaurant in Hong Kong had been facing the high rental
costs and high inflation, together with the persistent increase in raw
materials costs and labour costs pose challenges to the Group. On 31
July 2012, the Group completed the disposal of a Chinese restaurant
in Hong Kong, for an aggregate consideration of HK$5,900,000 and
recorded a gain of HK$5,828,000. After completion of the Disposal,
the Group will continue to operate the sales of food and beverages
business and implement a tighter cost control on the remaining
business.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a
turnover from the sales of food and beverages business of
approximately HK$61,951,000 (2011: HK$73,876,000), an decrease of
16% as compared to the last year. The decrease in turnover was
because the Disposal. The segment profit before tax expenses was
approximately HK$7,404,000 (2011: loss of HK$65,000) mainly
attributable to the gain from the Disposal.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEFWR S

Financial Review

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no outstanding interest-
bearing borrowings (2011: Nil). The cash and cash equivalents of the
Group were approximately HK$316,354,000 (2011: HK$378,011,000).
The Group's current ratio (current assets to current liabilities) was
approximately 1.0 (2011: 1.0). The ratio of total liabilities to total assets
of the Group was approximately 14.4% (2011 14.9%).

As at 31 December 2012, the convertible notes outstanding principal
amount of HK$1,958,670,000 due in 2041 not carrying any interest
with right to convert the convertible notes into ordinary shares of the
Company. The conversion price is HK$0.168 per share (subject to
adjustments) and a maximum number of 11,658,750,000 shares may
be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights
attached to the convertible notes in full. During the year, no
convertible note was converted to ordinary shares of the Company.

Charges of Assets
None of the assets of the Group were pledged as security for any
banking facilities and borrowings as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the HK dollar
and Renminbi exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations and market
trends have always been the concern of the Group. The policy of the
Group for its operating entities operates in their corresponding local
currencies to minimize currency risks. The Group, after reviewing its
exposure for the time being, did not enter into any derivative
contracts aimed at minimizing exchange rate risks during the year.
However, management will monitor foreign currency exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure if
necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEFWR S

Capital Commitments
The Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$261,475,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$259,350,000).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2012 and 2011.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a total workforce of 46 (2011:
154). The Group remunerates its employees based on their work
performance, working experiences, professional qualifications and
the prevailing market practice.

Major Transaction

On 28 December 2011, Hon Po International Limited (“Vendor”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the agreement with
the Purchaser, a third party independent of the Company, whereby
the Vendor has agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has agreed to
purchase, the Ocean Grace Investments Limited ("OGIT") sale shares
and the OGIT sale loan for an aggregate consideration of
HK$5,900,000. The Disposal was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting dated 20 July 2012. All
conditions precedent had been fulfilled and the Disposal was
completed on 31 July 2012. Details of information were set out in the
circular of the Company dated 29 June 2012 and note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEFWR S

Prospects

Natural Resource Industries

The Group has been seeking investment opportunities from time to
time to broaden the Group’s sources of income. The success of the
Acquisition of the Totalbuild Investments Group in 2011 enables the
Group to diversify its business into natural resources business.
Although the delay in the production plan of oil/gas in Xinjiang will
delay the return for the capital investment in oil and gas business, the
management of the Group maintains its long-term confidence on the
natural gas and oil industries and the Acquisition will broaden the
revenue stream of the Group in the future.

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

It is expected that the sales of food and beverages business will still
generate stable revenue. However, the persistent increase in raw
materials costs and labour costs pose challenges to the Group, we
will take a very cautious approach to manage its operation and
implement a tighter costs control in the near future.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EFZEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang, aged 55, joined the Company as an executive
director in December 2009 and elected as the chief executive officer
on 29 December 2009. He graduated from his study for Physics at
Qufu Normal University. He has near 32 years of working experience
in exploration and exploitation of Petroleum industry. He acted as
senior engineer in Sinopec Shengli Qilfield Company (the “Shengli
Oilfield”) and awarded the Top-notch talent from China Petroleum &
Chemical Shengli Qilfield. He was an executive director of Energy
International Investments Holdings Limited (stock code: 353) from 23
December 2009 to 9 November 2010.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, aged 46, joined the Group in February 2004
and promoted to executive director and chief financial officer in
October 2005 and resigned as chief financial officer on 1 May 2011.
He has over 17 years’ experiences in accounting and auditing fields
including over 12 years' accounting and auditing experience in other
public listed companies prior to joining the Group in February 2004.
Mr. Chui is also an executive director of Hong Kong Life Sciences and
Technologies Group Limited, formerly known as ZMAY Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8085) and an independent non-executive director
of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148), both of
which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EFZEE

Mr. Liu Baohe, aged 66, joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2009. He has been a Professor grade Senior
Engineer in the Petroleum Industry for nearly 42 years. He graduated
from his studies for Exploration and Exploitation of Petroleum Field at
the Beijing Petroleum Institute (renamed as China University of
Petroleum) in 1970. After that, he acted as Senior Engineer,
Supervisor of Geological Research Center and President at the Shengli
Petroleum Administrative Bureau of CNPC until 1993. In 1994, Mr. Liu
was appointed as Deputy President of the Exploration and
Exploitation Department of CNPC, and was promoted as President
from 1996 to 1999. From January 2000 to August 2001, Mr. Liu acted
as Deputy General Manager of the Exploration and Exploitation
Division of CNPC. From September 2001 to November 2005, he acted
as Deputy Chief Executive Officer of CNPC and took charge of
Petroleum and Gas Exploration and Exploitation operations.
Afterwards, Mr. Liu acted as Deputy President of the Biomass Energy
Team of CNPC, supervising the new energy development, while he
presided as the Chief Executive Officer of China Petroleum
Exploration Development Company Limited, supervising the
International Exploration and Exploitation and Natural Gas Pipelines
Operation, till his retirement in late 2008.

Mr. Zhang Zhenming, aged 66, joined the Company as an executive
director in June 2010. He has led as the President of the Energy
Ccommission of the National Development and Reform Commission in
PRC since 2006. Mr. Zzhang also had led as the Deputy Chairman of
China National Petroleum Corporation Research Institute of
Economics and Technology and had conducted energy research for
more than 12 years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EFZEE

Mr. Huang Changbi, aged 56, joined the Company as an executive
director in June 2010. He graduated from China University of
Petroleum and held bachelor degree in resources prospecting and is
a senior engineer. He also graduated from Shengli Qilfield Staff
University specializing in Petroleum Geology and Shandong Radio &
Television University with major in English language. From 1983 to
2009, he had engaged in oilfield development dynamic,
comprehensive research, preparation of various development
proposals and development technology management in the
Geological Survey of Shengli Oil Production Plant and Dongxin Oil
Production Plant of Shengli Qilfield. During this period, he had been
the Executive General Manager and member of Party Committee of
Second Mines and First Mines in Dongxin Oil Production Plant of
Shengli Qilfield, Instructor and Deputy Director of Shengli Oilfield
Dongxin Geological Survey Institute; and was recognized as a Senior
Engineer and expert in plant oil and gas development.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing, aged 44, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in July 2010. He holds a bachelor
degree in science with major in accounting of Bemidji State
University, USA and is a member of both American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 17 years of experience in auditing
and accounting field. Mr. Fu is an independent non-executive director
of Dejin Resources Group Company Limited (stock code: 1163) which
is listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange from 31 January 2013.
Mr. Fu was an independent non-executive director of both of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited, (stock code: 162) which is listed on the
Main Board of Stock Exchange from 8 January 2007 to 27 September
2011 and Hao Wen Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8019) which is listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange from 30
November 2009 to 11 January 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EFZEE

Mr. Sun Xiaoli, aged 57, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in July 2011. He is a lawyer in the PRC. He
holds a master degree in law from China University of Political
Science and Law and a bachelor degree in law from East China
University of Political Science and Law (formerly known as
"EERPUAZET ). From 1983 to 1985, Mr. Sun acted as the teacher in
Fujian Provincial Public Security College. From 1988 to 1995, he has
acted as the research associate in Institute of the Ministry of Justice.
From 1996 to January 1997, he has acted as the associate professor
in the Faculty of Law in the China University of Political Science and
Law. Mr. Sun has been the lawyer in the Navigator Law Office since
1997. He has extensive experience in teaching and dealing with the
laws' affairs in the PRC.

Mr. Wang Yongguang, aged 56, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in November 2012. He graduated
from the Shengli Qilfield Staff University specializing in Petroleum
Geology. He has more than 30 years of work experience in petroleum
industry. He acted as Shengli Qilfield Dongxin Qil Production Plant
operating brigade deputy commander, the chief of technical
supervision and the officer of technical quality and safety supervision
center.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIWE

overview

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures. The Board recognizes the importance of
and benefit from good corporate governance practices. We believe
that improvement in corporate governance not only assists the
Company in effective supervision and control on its business
operation, but also attracts investment from international institutional
investors, thereby creating and enhancing shareholder value.

The Stock Exchange has promulgated the code provisions on
Corporate Governance Practices (for the period from 1 January 2012
to 31 March 2012) and Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December
2012) (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

1. Corporate Governance Practices

@

With respect to the compliance with paragraph A of the
CG Code, the Company has carried out the following
corporate governance practices:

The Company had held 10 Board meetings in the year of
2012. Directors have been consulted to advice the agenda
of the Board meeting. The Board has determined all
material matter by physical board meeting and sufficient
notice of the Board meeting has been given to the
directors. Minutes of the Board and the Board committees
are recorded in sufficient details and kept by the company
secretary for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any director. Directors were supplied
with adequate information in a timely manner and taken
independent professional advice at the Company’s
expenses to enable them forming decision in the relevant
meetings. The Company has arranged for insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the directors. The
composition of the Board is shown on page 41 of this
Annual Report. A director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition shall hold office until the
next general meeting or the next annual general meeting.
Every director is aware that he/she should give sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company. Details
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of the directors’ attendance in different meetings are set
out on page 25. Agreed procedures are in place providing
to the member of the Board and/or committee to seek
independent professional advice at the Company's
expenses to assist them to discharge their duties.

For other details of the responsibilities of directors, please
refer to the section “Board of directors”.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph B of the
CG Code, the Company has established a remuneration
committee with specific written terms of reference,
details of which are set out in pages 28 to 29 of this
Annual Report.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph C of the
CG Code, the Company has carried out the following
corporate governance practices:

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as will enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information
put before the Board for approval. The Company has
announced the result of 2012 on 27 March 2013. A
statement by the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities is included in Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 50 to 52 of this Annual Report. The
details of the internal controls of the Company and the
audit committee are set out under the section”Internal
Control and Internal Audit” below.
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Internal Control and Internal Audit

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining
sound and effective internal control system for the Group
to safeguard investments of the shareholders and assets
of the Company at all times. The system of interna
controls aims to help achieving the Group's business
objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining proper
accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information. However, the design of the system is to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement in the financial statements or loss
of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure when business objectives are being sought
Management has conducted regular reviews during the
year on the effectiveness of the internal control system
covering all material controls in area of financial,
operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risks management as well as physical and information
systems security. The chief finance officer (the "CFQ") has
reported to the audit committee from time to time during
the year, in conjunction with key findings identified by the
external auditors, findings and actions or measures taken
in addressing those internal controls. The audit committee
in turn reports any material issues to the Board. The
Board, through the audit committee, also sets targets for
and reviews plan and progress on continuous
improvement work of the Company’s internal control
system with the CFO on a periodic basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIWE

AR A B F
EESABEBAENERTZERZ
AEBEABEZEE - 2HRERR
ZHRERKNRBEE - NEBEIEHIE
SEMBAREEREEZHER R
REE URZRTERHAENB
Bz et HEZRETIME
BRRZBEREREANEERKR
HAEMIFRYE ZRE - UREEM
FREEASREGRRZAR - &
BERFAND T RRMAANMEESE
R BIEME - 2ERETE
7 TERBRERNEUARERRE
MERRLZEZEEREEERE -
e (BB ) RFATERE
“EEERIMIREERE 2 EX
B ARAEEIT RS ER 2 %
B THHER -  EREERARE
EZEHREENEREE -BEFENE
BEZZ B ENBAEERFITA
REAEEHEZBR B ARG
B UREEMREETRENET
e

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 3 21



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A\ B ie SUs £ M=
TRELHES
(d)  With respect to the compliance with paragraph D of the

CG Code, the Company has carried out the following
corporate governance practices:

When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of management, in
particular, with respect to the circumstance where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company. The
Company has set up three committees, for details please
refer to the relevant sections below.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph E of the
CG Code, the chairman of the board should attend the
annual general meeting ("AGM") to answer questions
raised up in the meeting. However, the chairman is
vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang as the chief executive officer
("CEO") will attend the AGM and will be available to
answer questions at the AGM. The procedures for
demanding a poll by the shareholders were incorporated
in every circular issued during the financial year ended 31
December 2012.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has
complied itself with all CG Code except for the following:

22  CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED FREI4E BRI 2 A R A 7]

A.2.1 of the CG Code which states that the roles of
chairman and CEO should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual and the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and CEO should
clearly established and set out in writing. Since the
position of chairman is vacated, the Board is currently
identifying the suitable candidate to fill the vacancy and
will ensure that the chairman will be appointed as soon as
possible. Up to the date of this Annual Report, the
chairman of the Board is vacated and Mr. Zhao Guogiang
is the CEO.
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Since the position of chairman is vacated, the Board is
currently identifying the suitable candidate to fill the
vacancy and will ensure that the chairman will be
appointed as soon as possible.

E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board should
attend the AGM. However, the chairman is vacated. Mr.
Zhao Guogiang as the CEO will attend the AGM and will
be available to answer questions at the AGM. The
Company carries out periodically reviews its corporate
governance practice to ensure that these continue to
meet the requirement of CG Code.

A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election while all directors should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. For the year
under review, all independent non-executive directors of
the Company have not been appointed for a specific term
but they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

A.6.7 of the CG Code, Mr. Sun Xiaoli and Mr. Fu Dali, the
independent non-executive directors, were unable to
attend the AGM of the Company held on 13 June 2012 as
they were out of town for other businesses.

2. Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own Code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of
the Company. All directors have confirmed following specific
enquiry by the Company that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code through the year
under review.
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3. Board of directors
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(@

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises
a total of eight members including five executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors. Members
of the Board have different professional and relevant
industry experiences and background so as to bring in
valuable contributions and advices for the development of
the Group’s business. One-third of the Board is
independent non-executive directors and one of them is a
qualified accountant.

Save as disclosed herein, during the year and up to the
date of this Annual Report, the Company has three
independent non-executive directors representing not
less than one-third of the Board. On 31 August 2012, upon
the resignation of Mr. Fu Dali as an independent non-
executive director, the Company had only two
independent non-executive directors which fell below the
minimum number required under Rule 3.10(1) of the
Listing Rules. On 23 November 2012, the Company
appointed Mr. Wang Yongguang as an independent non-
executive director to fill the casual vacancy. Hence, the
Company has complied with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules since then and within the time allowed under Rule
3.11 of the Listing Rules. The details of Mr. Wang
Yongguang as required to be disclosed under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 November 2012.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of their
independence to the Group. The Group considered that
all independent non-executive directors meets the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms
of the guidelines. The names of the directors and their
respective biographies are set out on pages 15 to 18 of
this Annual Report.
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(d The Board meets periodically with the management to

discuss the Group's strategies development and to review
the business operation. The Board also monitors and
controls financial performance in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. The names of the directors during the
financial year and their individual attendance of are set
out below:

e

ZeTHREEESH  fwAE
B RERER MR EBEF - BF
ENEREMEEAREEERREME
BERZPBRE AYRFEZE
R RAEERN zEFZHERNT

P &% Al

Attendance/number of meetings entitle to attend

HERY, EREECEEEE

Annual/

Extraordinary

Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Name Board Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting

BRAF/

®H EExEg EREEE ¥HEEE REZEE BRAE

Mr. Zhao Guogiang B985 A 10/10 N/AZRE R N/ARER N/ARiE A 2/2

(CEO) (77B#%)

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau - B2 % e 9/10 N/AE R N/AER N/AiE A 2/2

Mr. Huang Changbi EEBELE 10/10 N/AZNE N/AiEF N/ANiE 0/2

Mr. Liu Baohe ZERMELE 1010 N/ATER N/A 7N N/A N2 0/2

Mr. Zhang Zhenming FIRAAS A 10/10 N/A i A N/ATE B N/ANE 0/2

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing &858 % 4 4/10 2/2 2/2 111 2/2

Mr. Sun Xiaoli RERAE 9/10 2/2 2/2 11 0/2

Mr. Wang Yongguang T EE 12 N/A 8 N/A N A N/AE N/ANE A
(appointed on (R=ZF—=4F
23 November 2012) +—A=-+=H

BEA)

Mr. Fu Dali (resigned on & KF| %4 2/5 11 11 N/ATiER 0/2

31 August 2012) (R-ZF——F

NA=1—HEE)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.
Each of the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed in writing their independence from the
Ccompany in accordance with the guidelines on director
independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the
Company considers all such directors to be independent.

B EMER MEHERER - BB
HITEFCRELTRAUNESBE LT
HBalMARBELEEBLIERER
Ko BRI ARBR BB EFHE
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(f)  The Board oversees the Group's strategic development
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and determine the objectives, strategies and policies of
the Group.

The major issues which were brought before the Board
for their decisions during the year include:

i. Proposals related to potential acquisition,
investments, or any significant capital expenditures;
and

ii. Formulation of operational strategies and review of
its financial performance and results and the
internal control system.

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets.

Three Board committees, namely, the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, have been established to oversee particular
aspect of the Group's affairs.

The Board also has delegated the day-to-day management
and operations of the Group’s businesses to management
of the Group. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of financial statements for Board approval
before publishing, execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of
adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations.
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(@)

A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Board of directors have
participated their own professional training by attending
seminar/programme/reading relevant materials in relation
to the business on directors’ duties and the individual
training record of each director had been received by the
Company.

The Company has attached much importance to the risk
management about directors’ liabilities and has arranged
appropriate liability insurance for Directors and senior
management of the Company. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the position of the
chairman of the Board is vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang was
elected as the CEO on 29 December 2009.

The CEO provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with
good corporate governance practice. With the support of
the senior management, the CEO is also responsible for
ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meeting.

The Directors focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the
Board. Directors are in charge of the Company’s day-to-
day management and operations. He is also responsible
for assisting the CEO in developing strategic plans and
formulating the company practices and procedures,
business objectives, and risk assessment for the Board's
approval.

Non-executive Directors

All non-executive directors, including independent non-
executive directors, of the Company, have not been appointed
for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation and
eligible for re-election in the AGM in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company.
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6. Remuneration of Directors

The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 23 September 2005 with written terms of reference
and revised on 27 March 2012 as disclosed on the
Company’'s websites. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee include the following:

(@

28  CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED FREI4E BRI 2R A R A 7

to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

to have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payment, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors. The
Committee should consider factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration;

to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their
office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company;

6. EEFH
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V. 10 review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

vi. 1o ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the members of
remuneration committee comprised Mr. Fu Wing Kwok,
Ewing who act as chairman of the remuneration
committee, Mr. Sun Xiaoli and Mr. Wang Yongguang, all of
them are independent non-executive directors of the
Company.

The number of remuneration committee meeting held
during the year and record of individual attendance of
members, on a named basis, at meetings held during was
set out in section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on page 25 of this Annual Report. The
remuneration committee had reviewed and approved the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the board’s corporate goals and objectives.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group was
set up by the remuneration committee on the basis of
their merit, qualification and competence.

The emolument of the directors of the Company are
determined by the remuneration committee, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group's share option scheme as described on page 44
of this Annual Report is adopted as the Group’s long-term
incentive scheme.
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7. Nomination of Directors
The Company has established a nomination committee since 27
March 2012 with written terms of reference as disclosed on the
Company's websites. The primary functions of the nomination
committee include the following:

to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

i.  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become the
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships, especially to
ensure that the independent non-executive directors
comprise at least one-third of the Board;

iii. to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

iv. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the members of
nomination committee comprised Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing
who act as chairman of the nomination committee, Mr. Sun
Xiaoli and Mr. Wang Yongguang, all of them are independent
non-executive directors of the Company.
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The number of nomination committee meeting held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on a
named basis, at meetings held during was set out in section
headed "Corporate Governance Report” on page 25 of this
Annual Report. The nomination committee had reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the board, made
recommendations on the changes to the board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and assessed the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

Auditors’ remuneration

For the financial year, BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company,
received approximately HK$880,000 in respect of audit service
and HK$50,210 non-audit service provided to the Group. The
auditors’ remuneration has been duly approved by the audit
committee and there was no disagreement between the Board
and the audit committee on the selection and appointment of
auditor.

Audit Committee

(@ The audit committee of the Company was established
since 30 January 2002 with written terms of reference and
revised on 27 March 2012 as disclosed on the Company’s
websites comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing (chairman of
the audit committee), Mr. Sun Xiaoli and Mr. Wang
Yongguang. Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing is certified public
accountants for many years. In the opinion of the Board,
the members of the audit committee have sufficient
financial management expertise to discharge their duties.

(b)  The number of audit committee meetings held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on
a named basis, at meetings held was set out in section
headed "Corporate Governance Report” on page 25 of
this Annual Report.
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(c) The audit committee is delegated by the Board to assess
matters related to the financial statements of accounts
and to provide recommendations and advices, including
but not limited to the followings:
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to consider, and to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
audit fee and other terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

to discuss with the external auditors before the
audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations and ensure co-ordination
where more than one audit firm is involved,

to develop and implement policy on the engagement
of an external auditor to supply non-audit services.
For this purpose, external auditor shall include any
entity that is under common control, ownership or
management with the audit firm or any entity that a
reasonable and informed third party having
knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally. The Committee should
report to the Board, identifying any matters in
respect of which it considers that action or
improvement needed and making recommendations
as to the steps to be taken;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;,
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Vi

in reviewing, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to
the Board, the Committee should focus particularly

on:

.

any changes in accounting policies and
practice;

major judgmental areas,

significant adjustments resulting from the
audit;

the going concern assumption and any
qualifications;

compliance with accounting standards;

compliance with the Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

the fairness and reasonableness of any
connected transaction and the impact of such
transaction on the profitability of the Group;

whether all relevant items have been
adequately disclosed in the Group's financial
statements and whether the disclosures give
a fair view of the Group’s financial conditions,

any significant or unusual items that are, or
may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts; and

the cashflow position of the Group.

and to provide advice and comments thereon to the
Board;
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Vil

Viil.

Xi.
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S

in regard to (f) above:

a.  members of the Committee must liaise with
the Board and senior management. The
committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the Company's auditors; and

b.  the Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in such reports and accounts and
must give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Company’s
accountant, compliance officer or auditors.

to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim and final audits, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of
management where necessary);

to discuss with the management the system of
internal control and ensure the management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system and to review the Company’s
statement on internal control systems (where one is
included in the annual report) prior to endorsement
by the Board;

to consider any findings of major investigations of
internal control matters as delegated by the Board
or on its own initiative and management’s response;

(where an internal audit function exists) to review
the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company and to review monitor, the effectiveness
of the internal audit function,

Vii.

Vii.
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Xil.

Xiil.

Xiv.

XV.

XV

XVii.

XViil.

to conduct exit interviews with any director,
manager, financial controller or internal audit
control manager upon their resignation in order to
ascertain the reasons for his departure;

to prepare work reports for presentation to the
Board and to prepare summary of work reports for
inclusion in the Group's interim and annual reports;

to consider the appointment of any person to be a
Committee member, a company secretary, auditors
and accounting staff (including internal control
department) either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Committee member, company secretary,
auditors and accounting staff or dismissal of any of
them;,

to consider the major findings of internal
investigations and management’s response,

to review the external auditor's management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management in respect of the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external
auditor's management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions contained in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices set out in (and as amended
from time to time) Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules;
and

Xii.

Xiil.

Xiv.

XV.

XV.

XVil.

XViil.
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Xix. to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by
the Board from time to time.

(d) Inaddition to the above tasks regarding to the Company's
financial statement, the audit committee should also to
consider any other matters, as defined by the Board from
time to time; and to conduct interviews with any director,
manager, financial controller upon their resignation in
order to ascertain the reasons for his departure.

(e)  The audit committee acknowledges its responsibility in
maintaining sound and effective internal control system of
the Group to safeguard investments of the shareholders
and assets of the Company at all times.

() The Group's interim report for the year ended 30 June
2012 and annual report for the year ended 31 December
2012 have been reviewed by the audit committee.

10. Company Secretary

Mr. Ho Ka Yiu Simon has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since May 2011. Mr. Ho is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is
responsible to the Board for ensuring the Board procedures and
all applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. During the
year, Mr. Ho undertook over 15 hours of professional training to
update his skill and knowledge.
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11. Shareholder Rights and Investor Relations

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in
the Company'’s articles of association. Details of such rights to
demand a poll and the poll procedures are included in all
circulars to shareholders and will be explained during the
proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange on the business day following the
shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the audit
committee, of the remuneration committee and of the
nomination committee, or in their absence, other members of
the respective committees, is available to answer questions at
the shareholders’ meetings.

Pursuant to E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board
shall attend the AGM of the Company. Due to the vacancy of
chairman of the Company, Mr. Zhao Guogiang shall chair the
AGM of the Company held on 25 June 2013. This constitutes a
deviation from E.1.2 of the CG Code.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors. During the year, there was no significant change in
the constitutional documents.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with investors and analysts to keep
them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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12. Right to convene extraordinary general meeting
Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the written requisition (the “Requisitionists”) to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company (as the case may be)
pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association. Such
Requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company or the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures
as set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the

Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.

By the order of the Board

Zhao Guoqiang
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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The directors present herewith the Annual Report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries involves
sales of food and beverages in Hong Kong and exploration and
production of natural gas in PRC, the details of which are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 53.

The state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs as at 31
December 2012 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position on pages 54 to 55 and the Statement of Financial Position on
page 56, respectively.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2012.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the consolidated financial results and consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is
set out on page 148.

Properties, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2012 are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year, together
with reasons thereof, and of the Company’s share options, are set
out in note 30 and note 31 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statements of changes in equity
on page 57 and note 33 to the consolidated financial statement
respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2012 are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:

TEFFRHER

RPBRFEAR  TREPRHEEDRIEAEE
ZIHERNMIRBREAT

Percentage of the
Group's total

hHAEEZRETIL
Sales Purchases
tHERE KB
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 51.1%
The largest supplier AU ER 16%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EREEET 37.2%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major customers and suppliers.

Composition of the Board

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this Annual Report as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (CEO)
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Huang Changbi

Mr. Liu Baohe

Mr. Zhang Zhenming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

Mr. Sun Xiaoli

Mr. Wang Yongguang (appointed on 23 November 2012)
Mr. Fu Dali (resigned on 31 August 2012)
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Pursuant to article 86(3) of the articles of association, Mr. Wang
Yongguang, independent non-executive director was appointed by
the Board, shall hold office only until the AGM and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Pursuant to articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the
articles of association, Mr. Liu Baohe, Mr. Zhang Zhenming and Mr.
Huang Changbi executive directors, will also retire at the AGM and be
eligible for re-election. Mr. Liu Baohe, Mr. Zhang Zhenming, Mr. Huang
Changbi and Mr. Wang Yongguang (together defined as “Retiring
Directors”), being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

Director’'s Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 15 to 18 of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Directors’ Interest and Short Position in
Shares

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of the
directors and chief executives and their associates has any interests
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
which they are taken or deemed to have under Section 344 of the
SFO) or which are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which are required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

3

EERROzEERAR

RZZ—"F+-A=+—H EEERSHRITH
ANBEEEZHEATZREREENARAR

HEMEREE (EE RESF MM GRD ([RER
BRG] FEXVED) 2B - RO RESFF
FEESRBEGRIEXVBET RSN HRER
& AR F) R s (B ES MR G
FIAGREFRR /2 #am) - HEFRE K
1555 352 16 4 TE A B A RK R B P48 7€ 2 iR 8 M 2
B IRETAREAMNEARR KB
REaS BT -

Long positions in Shares: BB zHFR
Number of Approximate %
ordinary shares of
Name of Director Nature of interest held Total shareholdings
EEEW EEME FEFEEREA &5 ERZEAEIHL
Zhao Guogiang Beneficial owner 10,200,000 10,200,000 0.13%
HHE 9% EmEAA

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives of
the Company had, as at 31 December 2012, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Apart from the share option scheme disclosures in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the Scheme adopted conditionally by the
Company on 28 January 2002 and the amendment on 2 November
2006, the Board of the Company may, at its discretion, grant options
to eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the Company.

No share option was granted and exercised during the year under
review and there was no outstanding share option as at 31 December

2012 and 2011.

The Share Option Scheme expired on 28 January 2012.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interest and Short FTERRZEZRAR

Positions

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of the RZE——F+-_A=+—8 LU TFTALZ@IER
persons, other than a director or chief executive of the Company, in NRAEBHEBITHAB)NARRIREEF K
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the EIRFIERBEEEZZRMAER AR 2
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 D RMEERN R B ERSAR

of the SFO were as follows:

El\l

R

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the REXTROREEROTFEEZHTE
Company

Approximate

Interest in percentage of
Interest in underlying Aggregate issued share
Name of Shareholders Nature of interests shares shares interest capital
RIEERA HEBTRA
BREHE R R 2 2 T BT VY
UK. Prolific Petroleum Beneficial Owner 1,860,000,000 11,658,750,000 13,518,750,000 170.67%
Group Company A A
Limited (note) (Bf#E)
Wang Hanning (note) Interest of 1,860,000,000 11,658,750,000 13,518,750,000 170.67%
FE= () controlled
corporation
S AR RS
Note: U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Company Limited owned 1,860,000,000 Aiit : UK. Prolific Petroleum Group Company Limited f%
shares of the Company and convertible notes (the “Convertible % 1,860,000,000f% A& 2 7] B 43 Jo & & 8 B
Note”) in the principal amount of HK$1,958,670,000 due in 2041 not 1,958,670,0007% JT #) ] & % 5 4% ([ 7 38 B 3
carrying any interest with right to convert the Convertible Note into #1) o AABRRRERN — B0 FH - AR
shares of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.168 per share. IS, - TR RS IAR S 0168 2 744
Based on the conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, a maximum FHRBR B ARER ALY © *fj’;ﬂ@ BEK
number of 11,658,750,000 shares may be allotted and issued upon 0-1/678?’5755*ﬁ ‘ mﬂ?ﬁﬂﬁ%fgﬁﬁﬁzjqﬁ*’y%%
exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note in Bk ATRIRFOOROBEZZR
full. The Convertible Note gave rise to an interest in 11,658,750,000 11,658,750,000f% [ {3 - UK. Prolific Petroleum
underlying shares of the Company of U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Group Company Limited $ETJ§§?%%%‘%H§%%ZFQ
Company Limited. U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Company Limited is 5111,658,750,000 AR AHBRRE (72 #é s - UK. Prolific
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Hanning and such Mr. Wang PeFFOK%UT \QrciuD Compar]y Limited e I/Es;nﬁ'ﬁi
Hanning deemed to be interested in shares and the underlying shares ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ ‘ ﬁﬁ{;;%g@ﬁ%i%gﬁﬁmux_
of the Company held by U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Company Limited. Prolific Petroleum Group Company Limited 545 2
f& 0 R AR B D R A hE e o
As at 31 December 2012, all the interests stated above represented mig*:i"'ff =+—B - bR #ERD
long positions and there were no short position interests recorded in BT R RIEEMRR RS TR ERRR -

the register.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 #3545



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
and Conflict of Interests

None of the directors were interested in any business apart from the
Group's business which competed or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the year.

Related Party and Connected Transaction
Details of the significant related party and connected transaction of

the Group under the Listing Rules are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements and as below:

EERNGRRB2EERNEER

R B E BN R AR E RN B F R
SR B E 2 T A 2 (TR TS A M -

FEEATRBERS

REBLTRAAEESEABEALREERSH
BEIIRBMBHRRMEID R TX

Continuing Connected Transaction 2012 2011

BEBERS —E——F —ET——%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P aE FHET FHIT

Rental expenses paid to related companies EEEARTZHAEHX (i) 2,240,000 3,840,000

Notes: Mt -

()  The rental expenses were paid to N.W.P Investments Limited, an (i) BEERX NN TRERERRDA - ZARR

associate of Mr. Ng Wing Po ("Mr. Ng"), a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. The rental expenses were based on the
tenancy agreement signed with Ocean Grace Investments Limited. This
transaction constituted a connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules. Details of information were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 June 2012.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the continuing
connected transaction and are of the opinion that this transaction was:

1. entered into by the Company in the ordinary and usual course of
its business;
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2. conducted either (a) on normal commercial terms (which
expression will be applied by reference to transaction of a similar
nature and to be made by similar entities) or (b) where there is no
available comparison, on terms that are fair and reasonable so
far as the shareholders of the Company are concerned; and

3. entered into either (a) in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transaction, or (b) where there are
no such agreements, on terms no less favourable than those
available to or from independent third parties.

Save for the transaction as disclosed in note 35 to the financial
statements, there were no other transaction which require to be
disclosed as connected transaction in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities, during the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Bank Borrowings and Banking Facilities

The Group had no outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December
2012 and 2011.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2012.

AR (@)~ MAEEXGER(ZEHEFTDI2RA
HRRETRBMERSMmERD) K (b) 40
AR E - BIAREAQRKRMNE
BATAEZGTET K

BEQIBBEEEZSERH 2 HHGEK
s (0) I AE R - AR T ERG T
HIREBIULE=H ZIERETIL

B BB TS SRR RE S5 FTR BR AR B ) -
WEHEMZ ZERE ETRANAREZ S22
AR -

BE HEIERELQTARS

BE-Z-—#+-A=+-RILEFE AQA
{Ef L% -
RITEERRTEME

RZF-—ZFR-F——F+ZA=+t—H &
SEYEMKREEZRITEER -

RUXBIFRE
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Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 19 to 38 of this
Annual Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own Code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors of the Company. All directors have
confirmed following specific enquiry by the Company that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
through the year under review.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The audit committee has adopted terms of
reference which are in line with the CG Code. The Group's audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 have been
reviewed by the audit committee, who is of the opinion that such
statements comply with applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and other legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures
have been made.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee was established for the purpose of
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of directors and senior management.
The written terms of reference have described the authority and
duties of the remuneration committee which in line with the CG Code
were prepared and adopted. The remuneration committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Fu Wing
Kwok, Ewing, Mr. Sun Xiaoli and Mr. Wang Yongguang.
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Nomination Committee REEES

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March 2012 in AANRBBRBRAESETE RZE——F=8
g8g -

compliance with the CG Code, comprises three independent non- “ttEHRIREER KERARA=ZEE
executive directors of the Company, is responsible for making VHNTES BENEFEREEESLE
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of directors and EFESRASEIIRNES -

management of the Board succession.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD AEEZEEm

Zhao Guogiang T E

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director TTHABLFHTESE

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013 B —=F=A=++tH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BARZBE RS

|IBDO

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HEETHER 11155
TKEHID2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Energy Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 147, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies, and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BARZBE RS

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BARZBE RS

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 3(b) to the
consolidated financial statements which indicates that the Group
incurred a loss of HK$36,345,000 for year ended 31 December 2012
and its current liabilities exceeded current assets by HK$9,911,000 as
at that date. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Pik Wah
Practising Certificate no. P05325

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEZEBRR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

2012 2011
—EB——F —T——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE FE&T FAT
Turnover EERE 6 61,951 73,876
Other income HAnlg A 7 621 374
Cost of inventories consumed KOBFETF B (38,886) (39,297)
Staff costs B TR 8 (25,086) (33,055)
Operating lease rentals KEHERS 8 (8,931) 9,517)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BERREZITE
equipment (916) (1,593)
Fuel costs and utility expenses WHEBNMKEE (2,445) (3,964)
Fair value loss of financial assets held for FHEEE 2 @B EE 2
trading N EERE (3,115) (7,920)
Impairment loss of deposits and other &4 & B ih Ul ZIE >
receivables REEE = (14,369)
Impairment loss of loan receivables EWE SR 2 REEE 25 - (51,941)
Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities HE#FHIEHE 2 EE N
held for sale aEzk= 36 5,828 -
Other operating expenses Hhg s (19.,733) (29,140)
Finance costs BbE AR 29 (10,771) (10,618)
Loss before income tax MRETEBBATEE 8 (41,483) (127,164)
Income tax credits FrigHii e 9 5,138 4,328
Loss for theyear ~ AFEF® 000 (36,345) (122,836)
Other comprehensive income Hin 2wk
Exchange differences arising on REIRINEBEE 2
translation of foreign operations PE 5 Z=%8 28,949 13,372
Total comprehensive income AEEZTHKREATE
for the year (7,396) (109,464)
Loss attributable to: T 5 FE{L 548
owners of the Company VIN/NETEZ =N (36,345) (122,836)
Non-controlling interests IEIEA A 2 - -
(36,345) (122,836)
Total comprehensive income THELZENRAEEE :
attributable to:
owners of the Company VIN/NECIEZ =N (7,396) (109,464)
Non-controlling interests e R 2 _ _
(7,396) (109,464)
Loss per share BREER 12
— Basic (HK cents) — EARB) (0.46) (1.80)
— Diluted (HK cents) — B8 OB) (0.46) (1.80)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MEBERAR

At 31 December 2012
RZFE—=—F+=A=+—H

2012 2011
—F-=F —T——%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FHET FHIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ = MR 15 4,352 4,268
Exploration and evaluation assets RN EEE 16 607,273 602,105
Intangible assets mILEE 17 2,970,539 2,946,388
Rental deposits and other deposits Heme REME]® 19 80 416
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE B 20 83,305 77,481
3,665,549 3,630,658
current assets nEBEE
Inventories FE 21 7,263 9,754
Trade receivables JFE Uk BR 3R 22 319 9
Financial assets held for trading BEESEZemERE 23 2,372 5,487
Other receivables, B pElsas - sl Rk
deposits and prepayments TEfT IR 24 14,028 14,067
Amounts due from related companies — FEUR BEE A B 08 27 9,383 4,681
Cash and bank balances R & MRTTHE R 316,354 378,011
349,719 412,009
Assets of a disposal company DEABEHEZHE
classified as held for sale RElBE 36 - 5,711
349,719 417,720
Total assets EEHAE 4,015,268 4,048,378
current liabilities REBASE
Trade payables FETBRIR 26 6,270 8,749
Other payables and accruals H b e B R FEETSRIE 26 348,560 386,193
Amount due to a related company FES — [ RE QIR 27 4,800 6,954
Provision for legal claims ERREEE 28 = 5,000
359,630 406,896
Liabilities of a disposal company SHEABEEEZHE AR
classified as held for sale BE 36 - 4,002
o 359,630 410,898
Net current (liabilities)/assets WE(BE) BEFE (9,911) 6,822
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERTBHER 3,655,638 3,637,480
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MEBERAR

At 31 December 2012
RZF—=—F+=A=+—H

2012 2011
—F-=F —F——%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T T FETT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Convertible notes EEAES 29 110,320 99,549
Other payables H b e~ 1B 26 75,030 51,240
Amount due to a shareholder JES — AR R R IE 27 33,402 42,409
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIEEE 20 53 53
Provision for long service payments RERG & #E 86 86
218,891 193,337
Net assets EEFHE 3,436,747 3,444,143
Equity s
Share capital f& A 30 396,056 396,056
Reserves s 3,039,938 3,047,334
Attributable to owners ViN/NEIE ¥ =N
of the Company 3,435,994 3,443,390
Non-controlling interests e 753 753
Total equity R 3,436,747 3,444,143

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue 5=
by the board of directors on 27 March 2013. "7

Zhao Guoqiang Chui Kwong Kau
S BRI
Director Director
EF EF
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MBI E
At 31 December 2012
R-ZFE——Ff+-H=1—H

2012 2011
—F—=F —FT——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET FETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries S EENGI P £ 18 3,568,344 3,591,116
3,568,344 3,591,116
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets held for trading RHIEEBZeREE 23 2,372 5,487
Other receivables, HhEWsIE - 5le &k
deposits and prepayments A IR 50 -
Cash and bank balances e MIRITHER 21,425 21,180
23,847 26,667
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals A FE S FRIE K fE ST RUR 5,795 11,173
Net current assets RBEEFE 18,052 15,494
Total assets less current liabilities ZERZEBRBAES 3,586,396 3,606,610
Non-current liabilities FRBES
Convertible notes AR EE 29 110,320 99,549
Amount due to a shareholder JEf — BB FIB 27 33,402 42,409
T 143722 141,958
Net assets EEFE 3,442,674 3,464,652
Equity e
Share capital file 30 396,056 396,056
Reserves HE 33 3,046,618 3,068,596
Total equity R 3,442,674 3,464,652
These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue EEgNR T =F=A=-t+tHEMERKET

by the board of directors on 27 March 2013.

Zhao Guogiang
jiH B 58
Director
BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEEQEER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——fF+-H=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARERAEL
Convertible Non-
Issued  Contributed Share notes  Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus premium reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests equity
BRfT B4 TER
B BAEE BAEE ZERE BERE ZiER Nt FERER ERlf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TAL AL THL TAL TEL TAL TEL TAL
(note () (note () (note ()
(B @) (B ) (B @)
Balance at 1 January 2011 RIE-——E-f-Hz&R 217,684 30,004 1,134,801 - = (476,831) 905,658 753 906,411
Total comprehensive income rEEEANELEE
for the year - - - - 13372 (122,836) (109,464) = (109,464)
IssLie of convertible notes for SMERBARR T
acquisition of subsidiaries HREE - - - 2618811 - - 2618811 = 2618811
Issue of share capital upon REATARSZER
conversion of convertible notes  E47 2 R (A5 29)
(Note 29) 178,372 - 463,591 (613,578) - - 28,385 - 28,385
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZA=1-H
a3 396,056 30,004 1,598,392 2,005,233 13372 (599,667) 3443390 753 3444143
Total comprehensive income AEERENELE
for the year - - - - 28949 (36,345) (7,39) - (7,39)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-A=1+-H
L& 396,056 30,004 1,598,392 2,005,233 02321 (636,012) 3435994 753 3,436,747
(i) Natures of reserves are explained in the notes stated in the statement 0) HEEEER AR RSB R 2 ek F i (F

of changes in equity of Company (Note 33). 33) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

2012 2011
=F—=F —F——F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
BaE FH&T FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEXRKRSHE
Loss before income tax MRETEBHATEE (41,483) (127,164)
Adjustments for: BLATIE B {EH FH%E
Interest expenses BRI 10,771 10,618
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BERREBZITE
equipment 916 1,593
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEDE  BERREZ
and equipment 518 1 45
Interest income B A (156) (343)
Fair value loss of financial assets BIEEEZSRMEEZ
held for trading NEEEEE 3,115 7,920
Gain on disposal of assets and HEFIEHEEER
liabilities held for sale Az s 36 (5,828) =
Exchange loss, net b BRI E 2,486 8,417
Impairment loss of deposits and Ze REAMEWGIE 2
other receivables EEE = 14,369
Impairment loss of loan receivables FEWE R R ERE = 51,941
Impairment of inventories FERE 81 -
Operating cash flows before STABEEREEAE
working capital changes REBERE (30,097) (32,604)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERD, /(3 m) 2,531 (4,655)
Increase in trade receivables & Ui BR SR (292) ©)
Decrease in financial assets held BIEEBECeREERD
for trading = 16,270
(Increase)/decrease in HmpEWIE - e K&
other receivables, deposits T FRIE (&),
and prepayments (268) 20,109
(Increase)/decrease in amounts JEUR B8N R FRIB
due from related companies (3g),E (4,702) 7,769
Decrease in rental deposits and Heike REMES R
other deposits 336 —
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables — FERTER 3% CRi2>), /1240 (2,584) 1,845
Decrease in current other payables it B ELAth B A5 FRIB I
and accruals FEET SRR A (41,165) (194,033)
Decrease in amount due to FET— B RE A R IR A
a related company (2,154) (6,644)
Increase in non-current other payables  JE7B)E fib fE A ZRIEEE AN 23,180 49,560
Cash used in operations REXBHBAZRS (55,215) (142,388)
Interest received B UHE 156 343
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BREFBMNER - 54
Net cash used in operating activities &L £ FrE AR & EEE (55,059) (141,991)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FeBleanRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—FT——F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E—=fF —T——%F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
BaE T FHIT
Cash flows from investing activities REXBHEERE
Acquisition of property, plant and BB - R SRR
equipment (967) (1,031)
Acquisition of exploration and WEHFEMHEE
evaluation assets (229) (21,436)
Net cash inflow arising from BWENBAREEZ
acquisition of subsidiaries B[EMAFEE 32 = 599,412
Net cash inflow arising from disposal HEFEHECEERARE
of assets and liabilities held for sale EAXZRERAFRE 36 3,592 =
Net cash generated from REXBFELXRESTHE
__Investing activites = UG
Cash flows from financing activities FEXBHEELHE
Repayment of amount due to EEEN —BIRRRIR
a shareholder (9,007) (59,890)
Net cash used in financing activities BEXEMBARLSFE (9.007) (59890
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BekERRS CR),
cash equivalents it (61,670) 375,064
Cash in assets of a disposal company D ARIELE Y HEAT
classified as held for sale ReBE 36 - (2,709)
Cash and cash equivalents FIzRERERRE
at beginning of year 378,011 4,674
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes [E &t &)~ 3/ £ 13 982
Ccash and cash equivalents atend S&ZHERZERSE
of year, comprising cash and BERESRBITES
bank balances 316,354 378,011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

Organisation and Operations

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 4 April 2001 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. Its principal
place of business is located at Unite 5611-12, The Center, 99
Queen'’s Road, Central, Hong Kong.

The shares of Company have been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") with effect
from 18 February 2002.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company'’s subsidiaries are described
in note 18.

Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

(@) Adoption of nhew/revised HKFRSs effective
1 January 2012

Amendments to Disclosures — Transfers of
HKFRS 7 Financial Assets

Amendments to Deferred Tax — Recovery of
HKAS 12 Underlying Assets

The adoption of these new/revised standards and
interpretations has no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial 2.

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s operations, have been issued but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”):

HKFRSS (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2009-2011

Cycle?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
(Revised) Comprehensive Income!

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities?
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements?
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities®
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M mRpE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
F+ZH=1—HIEFE

BE—T——

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") (continued)

(b)
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New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

The improvements made amendments to following
standards.

0]

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments clarify that the requirement to
present a third statement of financial position when
an entity applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective
restatement or reclassification of items in its
financial statements is limited to circumstances
where there is a material effect on the information
in that statement of financial position. The date of
the opening statement of financial position is the
beginning of the preceding period and not, as at
present, the beginning of the earliest comparative
period. The amendments also clarify that, except for
disclosures required by HKAS 1.41-44 and HKAS 8,
the related notes to the third statement of financial
position are not required to be presented. An entity
may present additional voluntary comparative
information as long as that information is prepared
in accordance with HKFRS. This may include one or
more statements and not a complete set of financial
statements. Related notes are required for each
additional statement presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M mRpE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE-F—

ZFEFZA=T—HIFE

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

The amendments clarify that items such as spare
parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment
are recognised as property, plant and equipment
when they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as
inventory.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

The amendments clarify that income tax relating to
distributions to holders of an equity instrument and
to transaction costs of an equity transaction should
be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes. Depending on the circumstances
these items of income tax might be recognised in
equity, other comprehensive income or in profit or
loss.

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendments clarifies that in interim financial
Statements, a measure of total assets and liabilities
for a particular reportable segment need to be
disclosed when the amounts are regularly provided
to the chief operating decision maker and there has
been a material change in the total assets and
liabilities for that segment from the amount
disclosed in the last annual financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M mRpE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE—F—

ZFEFZA=T—HIFE

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") (continued)

(b)
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New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group
to separate items presented in other comprehensive
income into those that may be reclassified to profit and
loss in the future (e.g. revaluations of available-for-sale
financial assets) and those that may not (e.g. revaluations
of property, plant and equipment). Tax on items of other
comprehensive income is allocated and disclosed on the
same basis. The amendments will be applied
retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off under
HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement,
irrespective of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.
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2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial
assets measured at fair value or at amortised cost
depending on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains or
losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for those
non-trade equity investments, which the entity will have a
choice to recognise the gains and losses in other
comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the
recognition, classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or
loss, where the amount of change in fair value attributable
to change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities
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2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") (continued)

(b)
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New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether or
not that power is used in practice), exposure or rights to
variable returns from the investee and the ability to use
the power over the investee to affect those returns.
HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the assessment
of control. For example, the standard introduces the
concept of “de facto” control where an investor can
control an investee while holding less than 50% of the
investee’s voting rights in circumstances where its voting
interest is of sufficiently dominant size relative to the size
and dispersion of those of other individual shareholders
to give it power over the investee. Potential voting rights
are considered in the analysis of control only when these
are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical ability to
exercise them. The standard explicitly requires an
assessment of whether an investor with decision making
rights is acting as principal or agent and also whether
other parties with decision making rights are acting as
agents of the investor. An agent is engaged to act on
behalf of and for the benefit of another party and
therefore does not control the investee when it exercises
its decision making authority. The implementation of
HKFRS 10 may result in changes in those entities which
are regarded as being controlled by the Group and are
therefore consolidated in the financial statements. The
accounting requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on other
consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject to
certain transitional provisions.
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2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 have the same basic
characteristics as joint ventures under HKAS 31. Joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures. Where the Group has rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement,
it is regarded as a joint operator and will recognise its
interests in the assets, liabilities, income and expenses
arising from the joint arrangement. Where the Group has
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement as a
whole, it is regarded as having an interest in a joint
venture and will apply the equity method of accounting.
HKFRS 11 does not allow proportionate consolidation. In
an arrangement structured through a separate vehicle, all
relevant facts and circumstances should be considered to
determine whether the parties to the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement. Previously,
the existence of a separate legal entity was the key factor
in determining the existence of a jointly controlled entity
under HKAS 31. HKFRS 11 will be applied retrospectively
with specific restatement requirements for a joint venture
which changes from proportionate consolidation to the
equity method and a joint operation which changes from
equity method to accounting for assets and liabilities.
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2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") (continued)

(b)
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New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosures
requirements about interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements. It also introduces new disclosure
requirements, including those related to unconsolidated
structured entities. The general objective of the standard
is to enable users of financial statements to evaluate the
nature and risks of a reporting entity’s interests in other
entities and the effects of those interests on the reporting
entity’s financial statements.

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how to
measure fair value when it is required or permitted by
other standards. The standard applies to both financial
and non-financial items measured at fair value and
introduces a fair value measurement hierarchy. The
definitions of the three levels in this measurement
hierarchy are generally consistent with HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair value as
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit
price). The standard removes the requirement to use bid
and ask prices for financial assets and liabilities quoted in
an active market. Rather the price within the bid-ask
spread that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances should be used. It also contains extensive
disclosure requirements to allow users of the financial
statements to assess the methods and inputs used in
measuring fair values and the effects of fair value
measurements on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 can
be adopted early and is applied prospectively.
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2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial 2. BB BMKREERN(FA
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") (continued) BHmEER ] @)
(b) Newr/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) CHEMGEMRERZHTEETE
not yet effective (Continued) B RE R (&)
HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement (Continued) ERBHREERFEI13H — A FE
EitE (&)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of NEBIEEFEZEHR]EIETE
the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the BB EE 2 BEETE  EES
directors are not yet in a position to quantify the effects HMAREE(CEHAEEYBHRER I FE -
on the Group’s financial statements.
3. Basis of Preparation 3. mAEEE
a. Statement of Compliance a. EREH

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “"HKFRSs") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).
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3. Basis of Preparation (continued) 3. wEEE®)
b. Basis of measurement and going concern b. FEEERGEAKLERR
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assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values.

During the year, the Group has incurred a loss of
HK$36,345,000 and at the end of reporting period, its
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$9,911,000. This situation indicates the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. The directors anticipate the negotiation of the
Gas Sales Agreement (“GSA”") as disclosed in note 5(vii)
with China National Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC") will
complete shortly after the PRC government has
announced the details of the reform of natural gas pricing
mechanism. The GSA with CNPC covers a number of
provisions, such as terms of the GSA, quantity of volume
commitments, gas quality, price terms, delivery
obligations and delivery point etc. The major point is that
the Group has yet to agree with CNPC on pricing terms.
The natural gas pricing reform will close the price gap
between imported and local gas prices. It has been
gradually implemented in phases in certain provinces in
the PRC in 2012 and is expected to adopted in all other
provinces in coming years. The reformed pricing
mechanism on natural gas is a major reference point for
the Group to negotiate the pricing terms with CNPC. The
Group believes that the reform will lead to an increase in
domestic natural gas price which will be to the benefit of
the Group. Based on the current information available to
the directors, the directors expected that the GSA could
be finalised in the year 2013. The Group will then
accelerate the development and production of oil/gas in
the field so that the overall financial performance of the
Group will be significantly improved, as well as its
operating cash position. The Group will also continue to
renegotiate the payment terms with those contractors of
exploration and evaluation assets so as to delay the
repayment. During the current year, the Group has
successfully negotiated with a contractor to delay the
repayment of the amount HK$75,030,000 and stated as
non-current liabilities as at 31 December 2012. The major
shareholder has also undertaken not recalling the amount
due to it until the Group is able to pay its other creditors
in the normal course of business, in order to maintain the
Group as a going concern.
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3. Basis of Preparation (continued)

(0

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

The directors have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group for the eighteen months
ending 30 June 2014 taking into account the measures as
referred to above, and consider that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for the period of the forecast.
Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

If the going concern basis is not appropriate, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the values of the
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify hon-current
assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,
respectively.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

4. Significant Accounting Policies

(@

Business combination and basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interest that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(@

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January
2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied HKFRS 3 (2008))
have been accounted for in accordance with the transition
requirements in the standard. Such balances are not
adjusted upon first application of the standard.
Subsequent revisions to estimates of such consideration
are treated as adjustments to the cost of these business
combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group'’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4. EREGFBER @)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation (@) EREHREEEE(E)
(Continued)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or A EEREWB AR TR - i
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) ERER DR NIME 2 Z818 ()
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration FTUER R (B 2 A B (A B AL A (R B *E
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) mZ AN EBEEE  BiZMEA
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including Rz EBE(BEEE) RBEREMIFE
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non- TR B 2 BREE o SE AT sh & MY
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in BRRREMEE W EER 2 REEIR
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary HEHBEEEXE BERATEEZHER
are accounted for in the same manner as would be 7B o
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non- g% - BB AT KB A B %A R
controlling interests that represent present ownership w2 SRR R 2 BRE A 2 5 A%
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests LN ERE 2 SR L IEE
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest's [RERELEREREESH 2D 2
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total AR EB T TR BN R =
comprehensive income is attributed to such non- (ES e et Hﬂémﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%?ﬂ%
controlling interests even if this results in those non- Lotk o
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(b) Subsidiaries (b) KIEAR
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A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is able
to exercise control. Control is achieved where the
Company, directly or indirectly, has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity, so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently exercisable are taken
into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties undertake an economic activity
which is subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity.

Assets that the Group controls and liabilities that it incurs
in relation to jointly controlled operations are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
on an accrual basis and classified according to the nature
of the item. The Group’s share of income that it earns
from jointly controlled operations together with the
expenses that it incurs are included in profit or loss when
it is probable that economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to/from the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

(c)

(d)
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4. EREGFBER @)

(d)
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Other than gas properties, property, plant and equipment
are depreciated so as to write off their cost or valuation
net of expected residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. The useful lives are as follows:

(d)

M BERRE(E)

BRREEN  UF  BEERERE
RO E AT 68 A A O S EL R AR
BB RIBEERZEE - A E
REH  MBEEIRTETEZRSR
SFHRERR - YNBSS RRAE - 7
ERFHMT -

Leasehold improvements  3-6 years or over the term of MENEEE 3E6FHIRIE
the lease; if shorter (AR B2E)

Furniture and fixtures 4-8 years BRREE LB

Motor vehicles 6-8 years B 6Z8F

Depreciation on gas properties is provided to write off the
cost of the gas properties using the units of production
method utilising the contingent resources or reserve, as
appropriate as the depletion base.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e)

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Costs directly
associated with an exploratory wells (drilling cost and
others) are capitalised pending a determination of
whether sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas
reserves have been discovered. If it is determined that
commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs
are charged to profit or loss.

Expenditure incurred in the preliminary exploration stage
are written off as expense as incurred.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable,
relevant previously recognised exploration and evaluation
assets are reclassified as gas properties under property,
plant and equipment. These assets are assessed for
impairment before reclassification.

(e)
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e)
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Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)
Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets
The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
assets is reviewed when facts and circumstances suggest
that the carrying amount of an exploration and evaluation
assets may exceed its recoverable amount. When one or
more of the following events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,
the Group shall perform an impairment test in accordance
with HKAS 36.

o the period for which the Group has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during the
period or will expire in the near future, and is not
expected to be renewed.

o substantive expenditure on further exploration for
and evaluation of natural resources in the specific
area is neither budgeted nor planned.

o exploration for and evaluation of natural resources
in the specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable guantities of natural resources
and the Group has decided to discontinue such
activities in the specific area.

o sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to proceed,
the carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in full
from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

(e)
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f) Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The interests in petroleum
production sharing contracts were amortised on
unit of production method.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired (see the accounting policies
in respect of impairment losses for tangible and
intangible assets below).
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4. EREGFBER @)

(g) Leasing (g) #HE
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the EHEMNRTE A ENRAE D R
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and % R Bl RS TREAR - HESHE
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are REMERE - FIEHEMBESEAK
classified as operating leases. BHE -
The Group as lessee KEBBAHEA
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised BEMEHERBZEENLIZAR
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value FTEREXHKEHENRZRE(NE
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease ERE)BRABEE - HEZHEH
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are EABEIR HENKASTAER
analysed between capital and interest. The interest RAE o FEE H R HEBAREZEH
element is charged to profit or loss over the period of the B WAREE & BEH G E TG
lease and is calculated so that it represents a constant RNt & - BRI MERMHBAZ
proportion of the lease liability. The capital element BREE o
reduces the balance owed to the lessor.
The total rentals payable under the operating leases are KERE RN 2 S EFENE R A
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over B AEESNR BBz S
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised BREBAERAEeRAIRE 2 —
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the B ©
term of the lease.

(h) Impairment of other assets (hy HtEERE
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At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment 10ss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

o property, plant and equipment under cost model,
and

. investments in subsidiaries.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment 0ss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in first out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

(h)

(i)
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(j). Financial Instruments

(i)
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Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. A regular way purchase or
sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or l0ss

These assets include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and that
event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor,

o breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

o granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

o it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When any
part of financial asset is determined as uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for
the relevant financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4. EREGFBER @)

()  Financial Instruments (Continued) () =®MmIAE)
(iii)  Financial liabilities (i) =HEE

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan
note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or l0ss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4. EREGFBER @)

(j)  Financial Instruments (Continued) () =£WMIEE)
(iv) Convertible notes (iv) A#RER

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into their respective items
on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as
an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the notes into
equity, is included in equity (convertible notes equity
reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible notes reserve
until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in convertible notes equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
dates, the balance stated in convertible notes equity
reserve will be released to the retained earnings. No
gain or loss is recognised upon conversion or
expiration of the option.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4. EREGFBER @)

(k)

)
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of
cash flows.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale when:

they are available for immediate sale;

o management is committed to a plan to sell;

o it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will
be made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

o an active programme to locate a buyer has been
initiated;

o the asset or disposal group is being marketed at a

reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

o a sale is expected to complete within 12 months
from the date of classification.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

U

(m)

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups (Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of:

o their carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy; and

o fair value less costs to sell.

Following their classification as held for sale, non-current
assets (including those in a disposal group) are not
depreciated.

The results of operations disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss up to the date of disposal.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m)
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Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4. EREGFBER @)

(n) Provisions and contingent liabilities (n) BERIAEE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing HRHAR K FETRAE L BE - A
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive SERBTEEHEEEENEERT
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which will i Al 82 3| B Al A& B A AT 2 OB Fl 2
probably result in an outflow of economic benefits that T 2 R SRR -
can be reasonably estimated.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic NAF T ZLBER =L - s
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be TRERI SR - Bl BEERRER
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a FANBE  RIELEMNRRE 2 S
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of B o BARE 2 EE - WEFEER
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the B—IEHAZERREH 2 NI AL
existence of which will only be confirmed by the o MEBEANAAE  BRIELEF
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future momb 2 e RN -
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(0) Foreign currencies (o) shix

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operates (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4. EREGFBER @)

(0) Foreign currencies (Continued) (0) spix(4E)
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of HEMMEEKIEEFEA CERZE
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items, HREELHEREBETER - E
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they BMEERIHE MEEZIE N ZHIZ
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of N EBEFAZBEZER - S
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in P E G A & 11 E Ath 2 TE K e R AR
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising JEEMIEE FTELE 2 2RI - FEilL
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of BT EEERZBIREMEEY
which gains and losses are recognised in other TR o
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange
differences are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign REZERER  BINFEBHB 2 WEZIEE
operations are translated into the presentation currency DIEFEFEHERBESREEH 2
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average PG (B TT) - ERERREAX
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates PRRERIBRAN - TEULB T - AIRETT
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the R G 2 HAEERE o [N
rates approximating to those ruling when the transactions BoMEEERABRREHRZHE
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign FREXRRE - itES BN Z5(0
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end of B)REMEEKEER  WRER
reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are REtRINEREE (FBER D SRR E
recognised in other comprehensive income and m(WER)) REBEE 2BV
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve 7% % 7% ik HA AR B N B B3R AN SR 7S
(attributed to minority interests as appropriate). Exchange KEFHE P 2EHEKIER MR
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ EaEReELER ENoEEE
separate financial statements on the translation of long- MEE Wz - WREZ RET A INE R
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term monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(p) Employees’ benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Short term benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of reporting period.

Employment Ordinance long service payments
Certain employees of the Group have completed the
required number of years of service under the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“Employment Ordinance”) to be eligible for long
service payments upon termination of their
employment. The Group is only liable to make such
payments where the termination meets the required
circumstances specified in the Employment
Ordinance.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)
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Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

() Revenue from restaurant operations is recognised
when catering services are provided to customers.

(i) Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which is
at the time of delivery and title is passed to
customer.

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time-apportioned
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family

is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(r) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(Vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4. EREGFBER @)

(r) Related parties (Continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

()

(ii)

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group makes impairment provision for receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
balance. Provisions are applied to receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balance may not be collectible. The identification of
impaired receivables requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of receivables and provision for impaired
receivables in the year in which such estimate has been
changed. If the financial condition of the debtors were to
deteriorate, additional impairment may be required.

Estimation of oil and gas resources and/or reserves
Engineering estimates of the Group's oil and gas reserves
and resources as inherently imprecise and represent only
approximate amounts because of the subjective
judgements involved in developing such information.
There are authoritative guidelines regarding the
engineering criteria that have to be met before estimated
oil and gas reserves can be designated as “proved”.
Proved and proved developed reserves estimates will be
updated at least annually and take into account recent
production and technical information about each field. In
addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to
year, the estimate of proved and proved developed
reserves also changes. The change will be considered as
a change in estimation for accounting purposes and is
reflected on a prospective basis in related depreciation
rates.

5. HREESTHERMATTAREER

ZEBRIR (@)
) ERREWREZRE

(ii)

AR &= B AR 43 b B W R IR B 2 T I )
T2 JE VB H R Ak T 4 FE W SR IR VB HRUE
BE - —BEEHABEREBETH
A A REEEREE - BE 5t YR
RE LB - BBITREZ BURIR
AR HE R - HWEMZEE
HREMBATR ZRBEEENZ
hATEREE 2 5 2 A B WRTR 2 FR I
K BRI ERYRIR 2 BE - HIEBA
ZHBARBAE - RIB R EZEH B
A

HMREREHfREME

ENRRELER S REERHE -
AEBHRRERFEN TIZETF
BEREN TN - W (EBRE R
B A ARFENEES [KRBRHE
BlZA BRECETEEIRER
ENEBIMEES - RARKACD A%
RENGEARELEFEHT R I
AR fER B R A E MR E
Ko pEoh - ARER RRAKFIRE
2F o Fit KHRRFACHEHE
AT EHRES - e B M
T LB RAMAEERIE
WHZTAHEE R R ARRI RSB P o

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 3 97



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M mRpE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

(ii) Estimation of oil and gas resources and/or reserves
(Continued)
Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
depreciation expense, impairment expense and future
dismantlement costs. Depreciation rates are determined
based on estimated proved developed reserve quantities
(the denominator) and capitalised costs of producing
properties (the numerator). Producing properties’
capitalised costs are amortised based on the unit-of-
production method.

(iii) Recognition of deferred income tax

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 4(m),
deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilised, and it is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax assets are realised.
In determining the deferred income tax assets to be
recognised, management is required to estimate the
future applicable tax rate for each subsidiary of the
Company at each tax jurisdiction and the profitability of
each subsidiary, so as to estimate the future utilisation of
tax losses. Any difference between these estimates and
the actual outcome will impact the Group’s result in the
period in which the actual outcome is determined.

(iv) Suspended Investment

For investments which have been suspended from trading
as at year end, the fair value was measured with
reference to the quoted price of the last dealing date
before suspension of trade and other available
information consider appropriate by the Directors. The
carrying amounts of these investments are approximately
HK$2,226,000 (2011: HK$5,332,000).
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Valuation of convertible notes

The directors of the Company use their judgement in
selecting an appropriate valuation technigue for the
Group's convertible notes which are not quoted in the
active market. The fair value of the liability and equity
components inside the convertible notes are estimated by
an independent professional valuer. The fair value of
these components varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions. Any changes in these
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation
of the fair value of these components.

Estimated fair value of the acquired intangible
assets

Fair value of interests in petroleum production sharing
contract is determined based on the income approach.
These calculations require the use of estimates about
future cash flows, discount rate and oil and gas resources
and/or reserves. In the process of estimation,
management makes assumptions about future cash flow,
outputs, costs and oil and gas resources and/or reserves.
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continueq)

(vii) Revenue

Pursuant to the petroleum sharing contract mentioned in
note 17, China Era Energy Power Investment (Hong Kong)
Limited (“China Era”) is entitled to gas generated from the
Akemomu Gas Field during the exploration period in
accordance to the entitlement method stated on the
petroleum sharing contract. 266,290,000 cubic meters of
gas was produced by the jointly controlled operation in
2012 during the exploration and evaluation period.
According to the petroleum sharing contract, all gas
produced from the Akemomu Gas Field should be sold to
CNPC, unless otherwise agreed and a gas sales
agreement should be entered into by CNPC and China Era
to specify the unit price charged by the jointly controlled
operation to CNPC. As at 31 December 2012, the GSA has
not yet been signed between the Group and CNPC. In the
absence of the GSA, the Group considered that there is
material uncertainty of the unit price and hence relevant
gas revenue could not be estimated reliably and no
revenue can be recognised during the year. Based on the
current information available to the directors, the
directors expected that the GSA could be finalised in the
year 2013.

(viii) Impairment on exploration and evaluation assets

and intangible assets

The Group tests the exploration and evaluation assets and
intangible assets for impairment according to accounting
policies stated in notes 4(e) and 4(f). The assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is
determined based on value-in- use calculations which
require the use of assumptions and estimates. While
conducting an impairment review of the assets, the Group
makes certain judgement in making assumptions about
the future gas prices and production costs, changes in
these estimates may result in significant variance to the
statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—T——fF+-H=+—HIFFE

Turnover and Segment Information

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker in order to allocate reserves to the
segment and to assess its performance. In accordance with the
Group's internal organisation and reporting structure the
operating segments are based on nature of business.

The Group has the following two reportable segments:

The Exploration and Production segment is engaged in the
exploration, development, production and sales of natural gas.

The Sales of Food and Beverages Business segment is engaged
in the operation of Chinese restaurants being disposed during
the year ended 31 December 2012 and the sales of food and
beverages to restaurants.

AEBRBEEEZERKEENEHOAR
RE - BEEKLLDE - AR D #BFEE iR
WEHAE KRR - REBEAEBEOARFARB LT
ERE  REDBIREBIELSD -

REBEAE NFIMIER 2B :

BRREEDED - RFERARDE - FE -
HERFEERT -

HERBMEKHEBDE - tEhAERE

B(REE—FT——F+-_H=1+—HILLF
EHE) RAEFHEERR IR 2 ET5 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

6. Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)

The segment information provided to the Board for the
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2012

and 2011 are as follows:

(a) Information about reportable segment revenue,

6. EEHRDIER (®)

HIEFE  sA 2% HmEESREN D
HERWT

(@) FEHU2HD Bz BRI HEER

profit or loss and other information BERRHEMER
Sales of
Exploration Food and
and Beverages
Production Business Total
HERRR
BERREE BRI K st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FET FET
For the year ended BE-_Z——%+=A
31 December 2012 =t+t—HLtEE
Revenue from HNERR P U a
external customers - 61,951 61,951
Reportable segment (loss)/profit & 2 2R 5 2R TSR AT
before income tax (1) % F (26,332) 7,404 (18,928)
Segment results included: DEEBEBLE -
Interest income FEUA 156 - 156
Depreciation e 830 64 894
Additions to non-current assets  IERBIEERE 1,196 - 1,196
Reportable segment assets A2{RHHEE 3,890,246 17,821 3,908,067
Reportable segment liabilities AE2BHEEE (412,975) (15,977) (428,952)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——fF+-H=+—HIFFE

6. Turnover and Segment Information 6. EEBRDIER @)
(Continued)
(a) Information about reportable segment revenue, (@) FHRUTZHIBUE BFREBEN
profit or loss and other information (Continued) ERREMLER (&)
Sales of
Exploration Food and
and Beverages
Production Business Total
SHE R
R R A EE O EE 5T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT BT FHT
For the year ended BE-Z2——%+=A8
31 December 2011 =t+—HLEE
Revenue from SNERR P U e
external customers - 73,876 73,876
Reportable segment loss A 25 EERFTSELAT
before income tax B8 (33,390) (65) (33,455)
Segment results included: DEEEBLE -
Interest income B U A 343 - 343
Depreciation e 965 577 1,542
Additions to non-current assets FEREBEERE 3,532,355 1,005 3,533,360
Reportable segment assets A2HmOHEE 3,922,613 21,018 3,943,631
Reportable segment liabilities AIERoAEE (424,463) (26,578) (451,041)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

6. Turnover and Segment Information 6. EEBRDIER @)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, (b) TUERSBEANREGE EERAE
assets and liabilities ZHER
2012 2011
—E—_—F —E——5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
Loss before income tax FRET B ATES 18
Reportable segment loss Al 2 W HRFTEH A B E
before income tax (18,928) (33,455)
Other income E A 14 12
Impairment loss on deposits and e REMEIGRIEZ
other receivables REEE = (14,369)
Impairment loss on loan receivables EWE R 2 REEE = (51,941)
Fair value loss of financial assets BIEEBECEMEEL
held for trading NEEEEBRE (3,115) (7,920)
Finance costs BB A AR (10,771) (10,618)
Unallocated head office and RAOBBRERR AR
corporate expenses (8,683) (8,873)
Loss before income tax BRETS R AT A 18 (41,483) (127,164)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

6. Turnover and Segment Information 6. EEERTTER (®)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, (b) TUERSBEANREGE EERAE
assets and liabilities (Continued) 28R (&)
2012 2011
—E——F —T——1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A 2R BEE 3,908,067 3,943,631
Deferred tax assets IRIEF A A E 83,305 77,481
Other receivables H e U EROR 98 240
Financial assets held for trading BEEBECZEMEE 2,372 5,487
Unallocated head office and RAOBBHERE N
corporate assets NEEE 21,426 21,539
Total assets BEE 4,015,268 4,048,378
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Liabilities a8
Reportable segment liabilities AI2WmoH AL 428,952 451,041
Deferred tax liabilities EIEF A A & 53 53
Convertible notes AIR IR R 110,320 99,549
Amount due to a shareholder JEA — R IR FIR 33,402 42,409
Unallocated head office and ROMBHER R
corporate liabilities NEAE 5,794 11,183
Total liabilities FEN=L 578,521 604,235
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

6. Turnover and Segment Information 6. EEBRDIER @)
(Continued)
(c) Geographic information (c) HEER
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TREIAEEFERBINBERLZ
revenue from external customers and non-current assets W RERBEE(REEHBEEE R
other than deferred tax assets and assets held for sale RELEEERI  [HEEFTDHE
(“Specified non-current assets”). E RIS
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMBEFE 2z = EEFRBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—-F —F——F =B —FET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT THET FHExT THET
Hong Kong B8 (Efib2h)
(place of domicile) 61,951 73,876 375 1,072
People’s Republic of China A2 A R £ F0E
(“PRC") (T E D) - - 3,581,869 3,552,105
61,951 73,876 3,582,244 3,553,177
7. Other Income 7. Hftlg A
2012 2011
—F-=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Bank interest income RITH B A 156 343
Rental income H2UWA 17 30
Sundry income EAET PN 448 1
621 374
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

8. Loss Before Income Tax 8. KRFIBBAIEE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——14F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Loss before income tax is arrived at BRETISHIRIEE
after charging/(crediting): Bk (GtA) -
Auditor’s remuneration %R B & 880 1,000
Cost of inventories consumed OB ERAR 38,886 39,297
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERSBZITE
equipment 916 1,593
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERE&#E2
plant and equipment iG] 1 45
Exchange loss, net bE 5 B 18)%E 2,486 8,417
Impairment of inventories FERE 81 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB AR K (5,828) -

Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) B TR (BiEESESE)

— Wages and salaries and other benefits —TEKF & hEMET 24,529 32,217
— Pension fund contributions —RIRGHEIHR 557 838
25,086 33,055

Operating lease payment on lease premises &% » & & AR

— Related companies — BENA 2,720 4,354
— Third parties — =7 6,211 5,163
8,931 9,517
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BE—T——F+-H=+—HIFFE

9. Income Tax Credits 9. FiEBiER
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of FEEHERERANTIERRE
comprehensive income represents:
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Current tax — PRC BUERARTE — (9) (5)
Deferred tax (Note 20) IEFEFI IR (FIEE20) 5,147 4,333
Total income tax credit Fris il e s 58 5,138 4,328
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the HARAEERMEFEHSSFHIEEE « i)
Group had tax losses for both years. PRC enterprise income tax WERBBFISTAE LB - PECZEMSE
is calculated at 25% on the estimated assessable profit for the ot TR IR S i 5 FE RR A58 v A FR 56 2 25% =1
year. Ho
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——fF+-H=+—HIFFE

9. Income Tax Credits (continuea) 9. FiBHIER®)
The income tax credits for the year can be reconciled to the AEEMEREENEGEEZEKERAZ
loss before income tax per the consolidated statement of FRETISTE A B RS ARA T ¢
comprehensive income as follows:
2012 2011
—E——F —T——1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FAET
Loss before income tax BRET1SHIRIEE (41,483) (127,164)
Effect of tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate BEAMNERBE16.5%
of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) ZE——%F 1 165%) 2
M E (6,845) (20,982)
Effect of different tax rate of REMBERRELE 2
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdiction B AR ETRE 2 & (1,934) (1,469)
Tax effect of income not taxable for IERR U A Z TS o 2
tax purposes (1,170) (111)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for NAIB A 2 B2
tax purposes 3,315 13,904
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses PRTEBE HHETE (192) (25)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERZARBAHIEEE
not recognised g & 1,688 4,355
Income tax credits for the year FAMBHER (5,138) (4,328)
10. Loss Attributable to Owners of the 10. XATEE AEGLEE

Ccompany

The loss attributable to owners of the Company includes an
amount of HK$21,978,000 (2011: HK$93,414,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

EARRNB 2 HHREAR - AABHA AENL
B8 B R — S IE 21,978,000/ T ( = =
——% : 93,414,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——F+-H=+—HIFFE

11. Dividend

11. RE

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 HE T —F+_-_A=+—HILFETE

December 2012 (2011: Nil), nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of reporting period. (2011: Nil)

IS EREMBE (ZF——F : &) - B

BEMRETERREMRE(ZF——F

&) o
12. Loss Per Share 12. BREE
(a) Basic (a) EXRK

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted

BRERBRIAARRRER ARG
1R AR A B 21T & B IR 0 115

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the HETE o
period.
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Loss attributable to owners of RARHEE AEIEER
the Company (36,345) (122,836)
Number of Number of
shares shares
BB E R4
Weighted average number of B 21T BAR I T E £
ordinary shares in issue 7,921,120,000 6,813,495,231
HK Cents HK Cents
AL AL
Basic loss per share BAREAREE 0.46 1.80
(b) Diluted (b) #8

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share
for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 as the
potential ordinary shares on convertible notes are anti-
dilutive.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr & B35 80 R b o

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE T —Ff+-A=+—HILFZF

13. Directors’ Remuneration 13. EECMe
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-Z2-——F+-H=+—HLFE
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2012
Fees inkind contributions Total
e 2HR Bk —E-=F
Exne BRI HE L k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx FTEx FTEx FTEx
Executive directors HITES
Chui Kwong Kau IR
Huang Changbi BEE
Liu Baohe ZIEA
Zhao Guogiang i[5k
Zhang Zhenming o K BA

Independent non-executive BV EEHITES

directors

Fu Dali (i) AR ()

Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing {25

Sun Xiaoli RER

Wang Yongguang (i) SO (i)

() Mr. Fu Dali was resigned on 31 August 2012. iy NAFMEER=ZZT—=—ENBA=+—
ABHE -

(i) Mr. Wang Yongguang was appointed on 23 November 2012. iy FAkHtEER=—ZZTE—=—F+—A#
—t=REZE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

#

FoE——FEf - A=+—HILFE

13. Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2011

13. EEC2ME @)

BE—_T——F+-A=+—RHLFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme 2011
Fees inkind contributions Total
e EER RIK ZT—F
EXe EYH = STEIfK FGk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Executive directors HITES

Chan Shi Yung (i) g () - 160 4 164
Chui Kwong Kau BBk - 455 12 467
Huang Changbi =HEE 390 - - 390
Liu Baohe 2= 520 - - 520
Zhao Guogiang fHE R 520 - - 520
Zhang Zhenming FRIREA 390 = = 390

Independent non-executive BYFHITES

directors

Fu Dali (i) A5 R F (i) 75 = = 75
Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing &R 180 - - 180
Sun Xiaoli (iii) TRRERE (i) 90 - - 90
Yin Guohui (iv) B B (iv) 90 - - 90
Zhang Wei (v) SRIE (V) 105 - - 105
2,360 615 16 2,991

(i) Mr. Chan Shi Yung resigned on 1 May 2011.

(i) Mr. Fu Dali appointed on 28 July 2011.

(i)~ Mr. Sun Xiaoli appointed on 1 July 2011.

(iv)  Mr. Yin Guohui resigned on 1 July 2011.

(v)  Ms. Zhang Wei resigned on 28 July 2011.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Company to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company or as
compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31

December 2012 (2011: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——fF+-H=+—HIFFE

14. Individuals with Highest Emoluments 14. KEHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the EREERAUSEETFMALEFR  —LAA
Group, one director of the Company whose emoluments are RIEE 2 FH MR E X 13458 - WAz (=
included in the disclosures in note 13 above. The emoluments T——F: Af) AT Z2HMWT :

of the four (2011: five) individuals were as follows:

2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Wages and salaries and other benefits TERFHeUARAMET 3,113 4,740
Pension fund contributions RIRE K 26 21
3,139 4,761
Their emoluments were within the following bands ®’EZFHMAN T T5EE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEA™ EEAH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,00078 7T 4

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /7T % 1,500,000 4 7T =
4 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——F+-H=+—HIFFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y% - BERZE
Group rEH
Leasehold Furniture Motor
improvements  and fixtures vehicles Total
HEMERE BRREE AE B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
THT THT THT THT
Cost B
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%—f—H 3,154 1,199 = 4,353
Acquired through acquisition BRKENERFAER
of subsidiaries 706 646 3,946 4,898
Additions NE 849 182 = 1,031
Disposal HE = (88) = (88)
Classified as held for sale PEARBENE (3,217) (855) = (4,072)
Exchange differences R ER 26 23 133 182
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+=f
=+—H 1,518 1,107 3,679 6,304
Additions RE - 40 927 967
Disposal e (548) (299) - (847)
Exchange differences EREH 7 3 36 46
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-f
I =B an 8l ae 470
Accumulated depreciation R E
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——%—HA—H 2311 705 - 3,016
Charge for the year AEEER 888 335 370 1,593
Disposal & = (42) = (42)
Classified as held for sale PERRELE (2,045) (501) = (2,546)
Exchange differences R ER 7 2 6 15
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+_FH
=t+—H 1,161 499 376 2,036
Charge for the year AEEER 306 179 431 916
Disposal HeE (548) (298) - (846)
Exchange differences R 6 2) 8 12
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=H
e =8 B o o5 2118
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-A
=+—A 52 473 3,827 4,352
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+_H
=+—H 357 608 3,303 4,268
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—FT——F+=-A=1+—HIFE

16. Exploration and Evaluation Assets

17.

16. HERRFAGEE — FA5KH

2012 2011

—E——F —E——5F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FHET

At 1 January n—HA—AH 602,105 =
Acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries 37 8 Uk i& b B A =) EEX

(Note 32) (PfH7E32) - 559,607

Additions B 229 21,436

Exchange differences PE 5 =5 4,939 21,062

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 607,273 602,105

Intangible Assets

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the interests in the
petroleum production sharing contract acquired in relation to
the acquisition of subsidiaries as detailed in note 32 was
recognised as intangible assets at costs of HK$2,946,388,000.
The interests in petroleum production sharing contract were
amortised on unit of production method. No amortisation and
impairment was provided in current year. Movement of the year
represented exchange difference of HK$24,151,000. Details of
the contract as described as below:

On 22 December 2008, China Era entered into a petroleum
production sharing contract (the “Kashi Contract”) with CNPC to
drilling, exploration, exploitation and production of oil and/or
natural gas in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin in the PRC. CNPC
is a stated-owned company established in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Kashi Contract signed in December 2008, China
Era agrees to provide funds and apply its advanced technology
and managerial experience to cooperate with CNPC for the
development and production of crude oil and/or natural gas in
North Kashi Block on Tarim Basin in Xinjiang, the PRC. The
maximum term of the Kashi Contract is 30 years from 1 June
2009, unless extended due to the production period.

BYEE

HE_T——F+-_A=+—HIEFE "
W BE TS 2 Bl MM 2 A M EE 5 A& K1
# (FEIBEAMIEE32) =R 7R 2,946,388,000
BLHEALSELEE - ARESHKAE KR

mIREANESEHE -  AFEAN - WEY
B IELEBHERRE ANFEZEEE
H %8 24,151,000 7T « & #) 2 B
T

REBENF+-AZ+-H  PEFRE
PAMEETZT O AMEENKE N
([BFEH]) - URPBEIEEARRMIERFIL
BRER B  HBEREEAAR LXK
AR - POBEESRPBEKHEBRE

RER-_ZZNFT-_AEITZBMHTEL
PEFKASREES RERELENK R
ERERERDHERAE - AR EIHE
BEARRME HIEERFEREERHM
R/ FZRAR - Bt ERzERFHARAB S
ZTNEANA—BEAI0F  EEEHH
SIBUZERRIRMN o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

17. Intangible Assets (continued) 17. BEEE®)

China Era bears all costs required for the evaluation operations
and development operations. The operating costs incurred shall
be paid by CNPC and China Era in accordance with 51% and
49% respectively.

Under the terms of the Kashi Contract, the evaluation costs,
development costs and operating costs are to be recovered
according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil and investment
recovery oil. Remaining oil, after cost recovery, all applicable
taxes and royalty that might apply in the PRC, is share oil, which
is apportioned between 51% by CNPC and 49% by China Era.

As at 31 December 2012, the approval of Overall Development
Plan from National Development and Reform Commission has
not yet obtained.

Set out below is the summary of assets, liabilities and results
for the year recognised in the consolidated financial statements
in relation to the Group's interest in the Kashi Contract:

(a) Result for the year
As the project was still under the evaluation period and
commercial production had not yet commences for the
year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, there is no
result recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——fF+-H=+—HIFFE

17. Intangible Assets (continued) 17. BEEE®)
(b) Assets and liabilities (b)y EEREE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FAET
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 4,251 4,080
Exploration and evaluation assets R M E B E 607,273 602,105
Intangible assets mIEE 2,970,539 2,946,388
Deferred tax assets IR TE A 83,305 77,481
Current assets mEEE 308,184 370,020
Current liabilities mEEE (337,946) (373,192)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE (75,030) (51,240)
Net assets BERE 3,560,576 3,575,642
(c) Commitments (c) A&
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Capital commitments: B
Contracted but not provided BRTAERFE T3 EIEEE
for in respect of
— Exploration and evaluation — IFERHER
expenditures 261,475 259,350
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——F+-H=+—HIFFE

18. Interests in Subsidiaries

18. RMIB AR 2R

The Company
RAF

2012 2011
—E——F —E——5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETIRG AR 2,928,527 2,928,527
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUGBT B A B FR I8 1,155,450 1,178,222
4,083,977 4,106,749
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE (515,633) (515,633)
3,568,344 3,591,116

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
in substance a part of the Company’s interests in the
subsidiaries in the form of quasi-equity loans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——fF+-H=+—HIFFE

18. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued) 18. KRB AR 2Rz (2)
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 ARRR_E——F+_A=+—HZEEZ
December 2012 are as follows: WA RFBEET
Country/place of
Form of incorporation/  Country/place of  Principal Issued and fully Percentage of
Name business structure establishment  operation activities paid share capital interests held
HMERL/
RYER/ - EVE BETR
NEER EXERVA e bk TEER BRBRA BEEZAAL
Directly  Indirectly
HE GE3
China Energy Resources Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment Holding ~ Ordinary share 100% =
Holdings Ltd HK$1
HAERERERAR BRAR Bk BE REER LaR1BT
Hon Po (China) Catering Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Salesoffoodand  Ordinary shares = 100%
Management Limited heverage HK$10,000
EE(PE)KREEERAR  ARAA &b Eh HERMR LR
HRER 10,000%7C
Hon Po International Limited Limited liability company ~ British Virgin Hong Kong Investment holding ~ Ordinary shares 100% =
Islands US§151
EEERARAR ARAR KBRS B RAER LARI1 =T
Totalbuild Investments Group Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment holding  Ordinary shares 100% -
(Hong Kong) Limited US$1
HEBEEE(FHE)BBRAR  BRARA Bk Y REAER LRR1ET
China Era Energy Power Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong The Peaple’s Republic - Oil and gas Ordinary shares = 100%
Investment (Hong Kong) of China exploration and HKS$1
Limited production
RRERRRRE (BE) BRAR Bk hEARKANE MRHRREE LRR1ET
ARAR

19. Rental Deposits and Other Deposits — The 19. HeZERHEMFT - F5H
Group

These represent rental deposits paid for the restaurants and HWESBEREREMREMIMEE 2 EEMH
warehouse of food and beverages. HEkE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—_T——F+_A=+—HIFEF

20. Deferred Taxation 20. EERIE
(@) The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities in the (@) REEVBRARZELERIE(E
consolidated statement of financial position are as E)/ﬁ BEAEKIBHLT :
follows:
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities arising from: RSB (BE) ABELAS
Accelerated
Exploration depreciation Tax
costs allowances losses Total
BERMA  mETERE BIEEE HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2011 R-ZZ——%—HA—H - 568 (515) 53
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1=
(Note 32) (FF3E32) (70,474) - = (70,474)
Credit for the year FEHE (4,333) = = (4,333)
Exchange differences PE N =%R (2,674) - - (2,674)
At 31 December 2011 —E—%+=H
:+— = (77,481) 568 (515) (77,428)
Credit for the year FEHEL (5,147) - - (5,147)
Exchange differences bE H =% 677) - - (677)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=_A
=4=E (83,305) 568 (515) (83,252)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances 2 M BEARR KR M5t E 2 ELER A
for financial reporting purposes: ERRDITINT -
2012 2011
—E-—=F —E——%F
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Deferred tax assets EEFIRE E (83,305) (77,487)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 53 53
(83,252) (77,428)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——fF+-H=+—HIFFE

20. Deferred Taxation (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of approximate
HK$69,004,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$59,424,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the entity. The
tax losses will not expire under the current tax legislation.

20. EZEFIE (&)

(b)

AERELEREEE
REBWSERN T — —F+ A
=+ —H R HIBEEE 469,004,000
BT (=ZF — — 4 : 59,424,0007% 7T )
BRELEHIELE  REANER
HEARIE R AR T AR 86E Al 8 A
ZEEE 2 R RERTE A o RIRIR
IRLE - MIBEEK TR -

21. Inventories 21. B8
The Group
rEH
2012 2011
=F-—=F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Food and beverages B M sioet 7,263 9,754
22. Trade Receivables 22. EWERFX

Customers are usually offered a credit period ranging from one
to three months. An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at
31 December 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

RE—RESZEEHAZEZ=-HATE -
RZE——FR_F—F+=-—HA=+—H
ZIEWERFRERB AT T ¢

The Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-——F —2——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Current to 3 months BUEAZE =@ A 319 9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE—_T——F+_A=+—HIFEF
22. Trade Receivables (continued) 22. FEWBRFR (&)
All trade receivables are neither individually nor collectively Fi A R BRI 8 B[R R KR Z EE T
considered to be impaired as there was no recent history of BE BHEEAEEZBYRFEZHER
default and relate to a number of independent customers that 08 ok B BN SR HE R FR 8 A 1 - ARIR
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past BALES  TEEBREEERZSEHSIED
experience, management believes that no impairment BERE  REREEREUNESAE(CR
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there BRI AR R Al BB B o AN &R [
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the M F R AT HERR
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.
23. Financial Assets Held for Trading 23. HIEFEEZEeRMEE
The Group and Company
AEERAAT
2012 2011
—E——F —T——1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trading securities listed in Hong Kong, REBLEMZEEES
at fair value BT EE 2,372 5,487
For investments which have been suspended from trading as at RERBETLEFEE2RE - AQATFEER
year end, the fair value was measured with reference to the é}%%ﬁ%%ﬁ ﬁ‘ZE 1825 B 2 B hEE - A
quoted price of the last dealing date before suspension of trade REZERAEE WA ER 2 Bt ERFTE -
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and other available information consider appropriate by the
Directors. The carrying amounts of these investments are
approximately HK$2,226,000 (2011: HK$5,332,000). Fair value of
trading securities listed in Hong Kong which have not been
suspended from trading are based on quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period.

&t%&éz,ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%\]ﬁ2,226,000;%7&(f
——% :5332,000/7L) c WAREFIEER
ZEBLIMEERS  HAFEERERS
HRFTsR BT E



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——fF+-H=+—HIFFE

24. Other Receivables, Deposits and 24. BiEWEIE - sT& RFBMNRIE
Prepayments
The Group
2012 2011
=F—=F —FT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT F&TT
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HE b fEURIE - 514 R FEN T KIE 25,911 25,950
Refundable deposits AREE] S
— Mr. Wang Jian Guo (note) — Bk A& (FEE) 20,725 20,725
T - HOLTD
Less: Provision for impairment: B ORE R
— Refundable deposit (note) — AREETE (M) (20,725) (20,725)
— Other receivables and deposits — HthEEIERIES (11,883) (11,883)
(32,608) (32,608)
14,028 14,067
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

24. Other Receivables, Deposits and 24. HinEWFIE - ST REMNRE

Prepayments (continued)
Note:

On 24 September 2007, Mr. Wang Jian Guo (“Mr. Wang"), an
independent third party and Joy Even International Limited (“Joy Even”),
a subsidiary of the Group, entered into the agreement in relation to the
proposed acquisition of the 51% equity interest in each of the target
companies, Bu Tuo County Wu Zhou Minerals Limited Liability Company
(i #58 AMTEE £ R & £ 2 8) and Hui Li County Wan Feng Mining
Limited Liability Company (12 52 & £ X B R & £ 2 &) of an
aggregate consideration of RMB498 million (equivalent of HK$516
million) (the “Agreement”). Both companies are limited liability
companies established in the PRC. The principal activities of both
companies are in the development of mines in the PRC. A refundable
deposit of HK$20,725,000 was paid (equivalent to RMB20,000,000) to
Mr. Wang upon signing of the agreement. On 31 July 2008, the Company
executed the Deed of termination regarding the proposed acquisitions,
whereby subject to the return of the refundable deposit, both parties
shall be released and discharged from their respective obligations
under the Agreement. On 10 March 2011, Joy Even issued a Writ of
Summons against Mr Wang claiming the principal and interest on the
refundable deposits. As at 31 December 2012, all of the refundable
deposits were impaired and there is no provision for impairment (2011:
HK$2,486,000) charged to profit or loss for the year.
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(%)

£) (B E=7) BRIEERAR AR ([17IE])
(AEEZ2EMBAR) T i HED - A
AEBEAKERERATMEEAMNEESRE
FRAKGEGFELBEEREFTRARSEZ
51% MR # « 4R {E A A R % 498,000,000 7T (1%
516,000,000 7T ) © M A &35 A H B K 32
ZAEBRATR  FEEBHANPEMALES - &
SBERFTHERATAEXNAREE
20,725,000 7T (#8% 5 A R # 20,000,000 7T) © 7
—EENELA=+—8 ARARBELENES
WHEEEZLIERE - it - BREIAREET
L EFBREARBEZEET - RZT——F
ZA+AH BIERELEEFEEERSM - BT
REZREZASERNE - BE-T——F+=H
=+—8 2HAREREEAERE - MAF
EiEaETEEREREIERS (2T ——F
2,486,000787T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

25. Loan Receivables 25. EWWER

Loan receivables of HK$51,941,000 from independent third
parties, which were unsecured, interest-bearing at 0.5% to 1%
per month and repayable within 1 year have been fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2011. Of this amount,
HK$37.1 million was loan receivable from SMI Publishing Group
Limited (“SMI”), a company listed on SEHK, but trading of this
company’ shares was suspended from 28 April 2005 and up to
the date of this report. The loan receivable from SMI Publishing
Group Limited is secured by a personal guarantee of a third
party. Another HK$14.8 million was loan receivable from
Birmingham International Holding Limited (“Birmingham”), a
company listed on SEHK. The loan receivable from Birmingham
International Holding Limited is unsecured.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group is still
negotiating with Birmingham and SMI, but has not been able to
obtain viable repayment proposal from SMI and Birmingham.
The Group is now actively considering to take appropriate
action to secure the Group's position.

REBE =75 8 E 51,941,000 7T
AEEW - IRTASEE1EFERER
—FRNEE  ZERBRBE_T——F
+ZA=t+—HILEFEEE2ERME - ZER
TE &+ 37,100,000 7 7T A& FE UL £ 55 H iR &
BERAR(EXE]) 2ERK - Z AR A
R ETAT  ERZZEEREMA =N
BREEAREEH  ZARZRHEEE
BE - EREXZLREEEGRARZEFRINA
—RE=ZTHEAAEREER 58
14,800,000 7% 7T /3% FE U (R B B IR TR 1% iR 5 PR
AR (RERFIEMZAR) ZER - EIR
BEBRNKERERAR(ABEH]) 2E
TR -

HE_ZT——_F+-_A=1+—HLEFEE K
SEMEERMREZETHES  HEER
RERE AR IR H AT T TR FERE - AN IE
BIRERRIEE TS - @AKE 2R E
18R HMRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

26. Trade Payables, Other Payables and 26.
Accruals

An ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group as at 31
December 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

PR RRR - BN FRIE R EST

/S|

AEER-_ZFT——FR_F——F+_-A
=t HZENERFERESTOT

The Group
rES
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
Trade payables FEAFBRFR
Current to 3 months BNHAZE = (& A 3,324 5,803
Over 1 year —FEpE 2,946 2,946
Total trade payables FERTBR SR 4R RE 6,270 8,749
Other payables and accruals Hth T FRIBE I FESTFRIE
Current portion: BNEAER 5
Exploration and evaluation cost payables IR K G R PR AR A (B )
(note) 330,943 362,585
Other payables and accruals H b 3RIB KB RT 5118 17,617 23,608
348,560 386,193
Non-current portion: FEBNERER S -
Exploration and evaluation cost payables IE KGR R R AR A (BT )
(note) 75,030 51,240
75,030 51,240
Note: Exploration and evaluation cost payables represents balances PARE - aNEA TS SRRBIRE 17 FTiEE « FEAS BN BT AR

payable to sub-contractors engaged by the Group to perform
exploration and evaluation works on the area designated in the
petroleum production sharing contract as disclosed in note 17 to
the financial statements. The balances are repayable on demand,
except for those classified as non-current, which is due to one
sub-contractor who has agreed to delay the repayment to more
than twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—_T——F+_A=+—HIFE

27. Amounts due from/to Related Companies 27. B EREEATIR—BRE
and a Shareholder MIE
(@) Pursuant to section 161B of the Companies Ordinance, @ BIEATEHE161BIE  EZIEFE
the amounts disclosed hereunder represent amounts due L ERBIREWREQRZRIE - mA
from related companies in which directors of certain AIETHBARICEERERREHA
subsidiaries of the Company have held beneficial *ﬁ?&%ﬁ?’l
interests:
The Group REEH
Metropolis
Harbour
View Ocean
Bestcase Dragongem JingHua  Twin Star Chinese Grace
Hong Kong  Resources (Allied) Investments Cuisine  Investment
Name of related companies Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Total
BEEE HEzEER REBA) EERE BRE  ORERE
BEARER BRAR BRAT BRAR BRAR ERARA ERAR g
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T T T THL T T THT
Balance e
At 31 December 2012 RZE-Z%+ZR
=+-§ - 1,709 1,465 2203 1470 253 9383
At 31 December 2011 RZF-——F+2A
==k 8 11102 1,202 1,395 854 - 4,681
Maximum outstanding FRREABETE
during the year 19 1,715 1830 2553 1470 2979 11,043
The directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company who PAN/N TZ%HEMT AEld - RBER
have held beneficial interests of Bestcase Hong Kong BERARF - B2EBERBRAA
Limited, Dragongem Resources Limited, Jing Hua (Allied) RE(BE )EBE'« A RRFARA
Limited, Metropolis Harbour View Chinese Cuisine Limited AIREFREARARFAEER S
and Ocean Grace Investments Limited are namely Chan ZESRMRER  MERE  REBEAE -
Nun Chiu, Lim Mai Tak, Grace, Cheung To Seng, Ng Wing RIKOR RARER o
Po and She Hing Chiu.
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fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE—FT——F+_A=+—HILFE
27. Amounts due from/to Related Companies 27. B, ENBEATAR—BRR
and a Shareholder (continued) FIE ()
@@ (Continued) @ (&)
The directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company who ARARIZETHBRRF  REERF
have held beneficial interests of Twin Star Investments EERAAFEESESIEELAS
Limited are namely She Hing Chiu and Cheung To Seng. B MoRiEAE
(b) The amounts due from/to related companies are (b) FEURFEARAE AR RFIE A EEE -
unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand. REREENREE
(c) The amount due to a shareholder is unsecured, interest © FER— %J&% RIE AR B R
free and is repayable after 1 July 2014. ARZT—MFELA—HEERE -
28. Provision for Legal Claims 28. EERERE

128 CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED = Bl4c /BRI 3 A 15 2 7]

On 1 April 2009, Sican Petroleum Plc (the “Plaintiff’) issued a
Writ of Summons against China Era Energy Power Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited (“China Era”) and several other parties
(collectively called the “Defendants”) claiming an interest in
the petroleum contract awarded to China Era and its
cooperation partner in PRC on 22 December 2008 for
exploration and development of the oil and gas blocks in
Xinjiang Province, the PRC, pursuant to an agreement dated 18
May 2007 allegedly entered into between the Plaintiff and the
China Era.

According to the legal opinion issued by the legal counsel, it is
estimated that the amount of damages liable by the Defendants
would not exceed HK$5 million. The Group has provided for the
potential damages of HK$5 million as of 31 December 2011. The
settlement sum has been paid by the Group in the amount of
HK$5 million on 3 January 2012 to the plaintiff.

RZZZTNFMA— B  Sican Petroleum
Plc(TR&E]D) M BRFERERIEE(BA)E
RAR(THBEER]) REEHEMET (5H
[#&E D BEHEMASM  BRPEFRER
RABERHR TN \F+=_A=1+=H
BAMRE LT - BRERIRRSEEPEFRE
BEFVZHAA-TTLFRAATN\AZ
R KRB RS 2 ARER

o

BX

RBEARBRMBHOERER - AetEEA
HEAE B E 2 8K & %8 1% 1 iE8 #8 5,000,000 74
TLeoRZZE—F+=ZA=1+—H £&HE
T Bt 7% 7£ 18 2k 5,000,000 5% TT1E H B 4 - X
EEER =T —F—A=-HRAREXZMH
fi# 218 5,000,000 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M mRpE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

29. Cconvertible Notes 29. ATRARERE

Pursuant to the acquisition of subsidiaries, the Company issued
Tranche 1 zero coupon convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$2,558,000,000 with maturity date falling 30 years from the
date of issue on 3 January 2011.

The convertible notes do not bear any interest and are freely
transferable, provided that where the convertible notes are
intended to be transferred to a connected person (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Group (other than the associates of the
noteholder) such transfer shall comply with the requirements
under the Listing Rules and/or requirements imposed by the
Stock Exchange, if any.

The noteholders may at any time during the 30 years from the
issue date convert the whole or part of the principal amount of
the convertible notes into new ordinary shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, provided that (i)
no conversion rights attached to the convertible notes may be
exercised, to the extent that following such exercise, a holder
of the convertible notes and parties acting in concert with it,
taken together, will directly or indirectly, control or be interested
in 30% or more of the entire issued shares of the Company (or
in such percentage of the issued share capital of the Company
as may from time to time be specified in the Hong Kong Code
on Takeovers and Mergers as being the level for triggering a
mandatory general offer); and (ii) no holder of the convertible
notes shall exercise the conversion right attached to the
convertible notes held by such holders if immediately after such
conversion, the public float of the shares fall below the
minimum public float requirement stipulated under Rule 8.08 of
the Listing Rules as required by the Stock Exchange. The
conversion price of HK$0.168 per share is subject to adjustment
for consolidation, sub-division or re-classification of shares,
capital reduction, rights issues and other events which have
diluting effects on the issued share capital of the Company.

REMBARKE  ARAETE AR
¥ 7$2,558,000,0008 T2 EE B AR E
B MMRERZIPBEABRTAR-F
——F-HA=BEFER=TFZH -

AHRERBETA B LA AR - HEfd AR
BREHRERTREESEABEALNIINZ
AEEBEEAL(ERR LR ABH
HRATMALTRAZRER IR AE
MeZRE (BA)

RERBARRETERES=1TFR ' &
I 2 AR (B AR 0.168 7 T 1% 2 #B sk B8 5 7T
BERIBEARS R RARN QR S @R - HE
() HBRITER - TRRERSEARER
—HITHALR A KERREEEISESR
30% A E AR B 2 A BT AR (3K
R REWNER AT AR e TR R & 5|
Bt EHMRBER 2 AR R BITRA
ZEDL) BN EITRATRRERMHI L
i RO ERELIRE BN 2 AR
P & f =K _E AR RIS 8.08 15k FT AT AR
PR E X RIEARFFRERTE - BIFHRARERE
BRBANBITEXSHEAMFAIRRRE
EPRT I 3 A o MR B E AR 01688 LA A
FER D & BF ~ RAHEF DR - HURARA
R R EMBARB D HITRAREETE
ZERELFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HR—F——F+=-A=1+—HIFE

29. Convertible Notes (continued) 29. AIAREE &)

BEMY MR D 2 A FHEERETA R
EEERHEE - AfEfs 2 A FEE(ERE

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
component were determined at the issuance of the convertible

notes. The fair value of the liability component, included in the
non-current liabilities, was calculated using a market interest
rate of equivalent non-convertible notes. The effective interest
rate of the liabilities component is 11% and the interest
expenses will be charged to income statement over the loan
periods. The equity component of the convertible notes,

RIERBER) ERARFEAIMBRER 2T
BAMEAE - BEF D 2 BERFER11%
U GEER N ¢ AE@WEW 7R o —f
MR EE 2 R D (RRABBKRERR
BEREEEFE /‘M?WEZ%%E)W\%?%
AZEmARRTAFTRRBIEHE -

representing the difference of the fair value of the convertible
notes and the fair value of the liabilities component, was
included in the owner’s equity and denoted as convertible
notes reserves.

The movement of the principal amount, liability component and ARRERASTE  AEHD RERID 2

equity component of the convertible notes are as follows: FENT
Carrying amount
BREE
Liability Equity
component component
=V g:5a) R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FAT
At 1 January 2011 R-_ZE——F—H—H = =
Issued during the year FRNEET 117,316 2,618,811
Converted into ordinary shares during FAE &AL
the year (28,385) (613,578)
Interest expenses F B 10,618 =
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 RZFE—F+=-_A=+—HEK
—ZET——F—H—H 99,549 2,005,233
Interest expenses E=N= 10,771 -
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——+-A=+—H 110,320 2,005,233
The convertible notes with outstanding principal amount of RZZE——F+_A=+—H  \[BRER
HK$1,958,670,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011 ZAREEBAREEH1,958,670,0008 T (==
HK$1,958,670,000) have maturity date falling 30 years from the ——4F : 1,958,670,000/8 7% ) * MBIEH A
date of issue on 3 January 2011. BRI ZE———A=H)Estm
=t&ZH-
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+-_H=+—HItFE

30. Share Capital 30. g7
2012 2011
—B-—& —E——f
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
A& E S8 fRnEdE 28
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THBT
Authorised: e
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each R—A—BR+=A=1+—-H
At 1 January and 31 December BRAES BT
LRk 25,000,000,000 1,250,000  25,000,000,000 1,250,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each R—A—BEREBE0SHET
At 1 January LAk 7,921,120,000 396,056 4,353,680,000 217,684
Issue of shares upon conversion of — RERATAREZ %
convertible notes (note ) AT 2Bt (B EED - 3,567,440,000 178,372
At 31 December R+=ZA=1+—AH 7,921,120,000 396,056  7,921,120,000 396,056
Note: Bitat -

On 5 January 2011, the convertible notes in the principal amount
of HK$312,480,000 were converted into fully paid shares at a
conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, 1,860,000,000 shares
were issued upon conversion.

On 17 March 2011, the convertible notes in the principal amount
of HK$8,400,000 were converted into fully paid shares at a
conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, 50,000,000 shares were
issued upon conversion.

On 27 April 2011, the convertible notes in the principal amount of
HK$111,289,920 were converted into fully paid shares at a
conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, 662,440,000 shares were
issued upon conversion.

On 22 September 2011, the convertible notes in the principal
amount of HK$10,920,000 were converted into fully paid shares
at a conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, 65,000,000 shares
were issued upon conversion.

On 10 November 2011, the convertible notes in the principal
amount of HK$122,640,000 were converted into fully paid shares
at a conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, 730,000,000 shares
were issued upon conversion.

On 20 December 2011, the convertible notes in the principal
amount of HK$33,600,000 were converted into fully paid shares
at a conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, 200,000,000 shares
were issued upon conversion.

RZF——F—AFR AEEH
312,480,000 7T 2 ALK RIR - REH AR/
BER - SHIREREA0.1687ETT - WA
BAERERELB®R AQAET
1,860,000,000 A& 17 ©

RZZE——F=A++tH X&EA
8,400,000/ 7T 2 A] AR R IE « R B A5
RS - HRBERERR0.168ETT - RATA
& = 45 7 5 ¥ 1% - A8 A &) %17 50,000,000
RRA&AD ©

RZE——FWHA-++B X2EAH
111,289,920 L 2 AR EE - EHIRA
BERD - HBREREMR0.168ETT o A
BREBEEHLBRE KNQAET
662,440,000 BEAZ 15 °

R-ZEBE——FNAZ+=—H KXE&EAE
10,920,000 L 2 AT IR =15 - B R iR A
BRI - HBREABEMR0.168ETT o A
MR SEIRRE 5 1% - AN A %47 65,000,000
BER% 5 ©

R—F——F+—A+H AE8H
122,640,00078 70 2 AI MU SR 1%+ HE SR
BRR - HIREREAR0.16878TT - WA
BMERERELBRE ARAEST
730,000,000 A& A

R-TE——F+-_A=-+H A2EA
33,600,000 7L 2 IR TR - EH 0 A
BRBD - HIREATR0168EIT o INA]
BRREZEREEBRE KNQA BT
200,000,000 f& A% {5 °
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31. Share Option Scheme 31. ERAETTE

Under the terms of the share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted conditionally by the Company on 28 January 2002 and
amendments on 2 November 2006, the board of directors of the
Company may, at its discretion, grant options to the directors,
employees and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries
to subscribe for shares of the Company.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
associates are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
option granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within 12 months period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during the period commencing
immediately after the date on which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted and expiring on a date to be notified by
the directors to each grantee which shall not be more than 10
years from the date on which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted. According to the Scheme, there is no
provision requiring a minimum holding period before an option
may be exercised. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable
on acceptance on grant of an option under the Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE—_T——F+_A=+—HIFE
31. Share Option Scheme (continued)

32.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options were granted and exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

The share option scheme expired on 28 January 2012.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries

On 22 January 2009, the Company, Totalbuild Investments
Holdings Group Limited (the “Vendor”), Mr. Wang Guoju, as
guarantor for the Vendor, China Era, as a guarantor for the
Vendor, entered into the agreement (“the Agreement”) in
relation to proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest in the
Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited (“Totalbuild
Investments”). Totalbuild Investments holds the entire issued
share capital of China Era which has entered into the petroleum
contract with CNPC as mentioned in Note 17.

On 3 January 2011, all the conditions of the acquisition of the
first designated area of the Akemomu Gas Field (the “First
Designated Area”) and the entire issued share capital (the
“Acquisition”) of Totalbuild Investments and its subsidiaries (the
“Totalbuild Investments Group”) have been fulfilled.

31.

32.

BARAERTE ()
BAETEESHEEET  ERELRT
=%y eEE - B()A IS ERE A
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32. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (continueq) 32. WEMEB AT ®)

As a result of completion of the Acquisition sale share and the
First Designated Area, the Tranche | consideration in the sum of
HK$2,558,000,000 was paid by the Company with Tranche |
convertible notes of HK$2,558,000,000 at the conversion price
of HK$0.168 each, to the Vendor including the shortfall amount
of HK$1,279,000,000 which was deposited with an escrow agent
pursuant to the Agreement. The sale loan consideration payable
by the Company in the sum of HK$906,299,000 was satisfied by
deducting the deposit in the sum of HK$804,000,000 and with
the balance of HK$102,299,000 to be settled in cash or
otherwise agreed.

According to the Agreement, the shortfall amount of
HK$1,279,000,000 convertible notes should only be released to
the Vendor upon the Company having received a written
certificate issued by the competent evaluator confirming that
the First Designated Area be evaluated on the basis of unrisked
economic evaluation within the six years period from 1 June
2009 (the “Relevant Period”). As at 31 December 2012, the
written certificate has not yet been issued and the convertible
notes have not yet been release to the Vendor.

In addition, according to the Agreement, the Group is not
entitled to the benefits and interests of the second designated
area in the Akemomu Gas Field. A separate shareholders’
approval will be required for the Acquisition of the second
designated area by issuing additional convertible bonds of not
more than HK$7,442,000,000 subjected to the fulfillment of
certain conditions as stipulated in the Agreement within the
Relevant Period.
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BE—T——fF+-H=+—HIFFE

32. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (continuea) 32. WEMEB AT (®)
Details of the net assets and liabilities acquired as at date of RUEBE - FTiE 2 EEM B ERFEF
acquisition were: BhA :
HK$'000 HK$'000
T F&T
Net assets acquired BB EEFE
Property, plant and equipment L E =Y & 4,898
Exploration and evaluation assets AR R EE 559,607
Intangible assets mEEE 2,946,383
Deferred tax assets REFTBEE 70,474
Other receivables, deposits and HAn IR - ke &
prepayments TERTROE 1,193
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFRRE 599,412
Other payables and accruals H At FE A 5RIE & ST RUIE (539,546)
3,642,426
Total fair value of consideration transfer: EENREZ AT EEERE:
Fair value of convertible bonds AR ES A TEER 2,736,127
Set-off with deposits for acquisition BB A Rl 2%
of a subsidiary 804,000
Consideration to be satisfied in cash PR EZ 2 RE 102,299
3,642,426
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: W EIREA 2R M AJFE
Cash and cash equivalent balances BWER e MNREEEY
acquired 599,412
Since the acquisition date and up to the end of 31 December AREEMEEE=—F——FT=-A=1T—
2011, Totalbuild Investments Group has contributed HK$ nil and Bk ARLASEEAR T TETRER
a loss of HK$7,394,000 to the Group’s revenue and profit or 7,394,000 BT 2 A SR M 2 Wiz R B
loss.
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33. Reserves 33. f#fE
The company b NN
Convertible
Issued  Contributed Share notes  Accumulated
capital surplus premium reserve losses Total
ARRRE
BRTRE EERFEH RGEE 3 5yt aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TET THET T TEL
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))

(P (@) (M= (D) (A=E(C))

Balance at 1 January 2011 RZE——%F

—R—Bz & 217,684 91,349 1,134,801 = (532,964) 910,870
Loss and total BERAFE
comprehensive income FENEEE
for the year - - - - (93,414) (93 414)

Issue of convertible notes RIKEH B R

upon acquisition of BITAHRREE

subsidiaries - - - 2,618,811 - 2,618,811
Issue of shares upon REBR R ZE%

conversion of convertible BT 2 ki

note (Note 30) (F#7£30) 178,372 - 463591 (613,578) - 28,385

Balance at 31 December RZE——F+=A

2011 =t—Hz&%# 396,056 91,349 1,598,392 2,005,233 (626,378) 3,464,652
Loss and total BBRRAFE

comprehensive income FEKEEE

for the year - - - - (21,978) (21,978)

Balance at 31 December WZE——F+_H
2012 =t—Hz&% 396,056 91,349 1,598,392 2,005,233 (648,356) 3,442,674
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33. Reserves (continued) 33. fEE @)

(@ The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued in exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the value of the underlying assets of the
subsidiaries pursuant to the Group Reorganisation on 17

January 2002.

(b) Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the (b)
share premium account is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company under certain
circumstances. It represents the excess of the nominal
value of shares issued by the Company.

(c) The convertible notes reserve represents the equity ()
component of the convertible notes issued (i.e. option to
convert the note into share capital).

34. Commitments 34. &iE

(@) Operating lease commitments (a)

The Group leases certain of its restaurants, staff quarters,
offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating
lease arrangements with remaining lease terms ranging
from one to five years. At 31 December 2012 and 2011,
the Group had total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

@)

BEARABBRIIBE_TET_F—A
THEAREESAEY  BUASHRIE
RAlZBBEITRAMETZ AR AR
MzEERKB AR ZBEEEEM
HZER

RIERSHERRVEAZRTE @ Bk
EBREETHERTADIKTARER
R RiGEEHRBLEARREETR
DB 88

AR RIEFEHEE BT RREE
2D (AL BRRRERAZ
BIFRE)

KERERE

RNEBIRE A BEEE S S AN 2 HEAE
BETHEE BEIBE HAZEkA
E HAHAE—ZRAFRE - R=ZF
——FRZTE——F+ZA=+—
H @ AEERBER THFEEE 2R
AR E ANz R REMNRERS

follows: Prt-cp=3
2012 2011
- —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Within one year R—FNRN 4,016 4,931
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFERF
(BEEEMF) 4,655 47
8,671 4,978
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34. Commitments (continued)

34. AiEE)

(b) capital commitments (b) EAXREE
Group Company
AEE AAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
“®--f ~—T—F | "B--f -T——#&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FTAT FTEx FTAT
Commitments for the oil field B 2 )R AR 7S
exploration services: HRIE
— contracted for but not — EETAER
provided e B 261,475 259,350 - -
35. Related Party and Connected Transactions 35. B AT REER S

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of
transactions between the Group and other related and
connected parties are disclosed below. During the year and in
the ordinary course of business, the Group had the following
material transactions with related and connected parties which
are not members of the Group:

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in note 13 to the financial statements.

ARAREEBRARAIBEALZHERA]
EITZRZENFRERE R - WERA
BTSN ER - ANGRE HE A MBI M BEA T
TZRGFHIFHEBENT - FARRAEEZ
BREEHARED  AEEEFAREKER
BIZBBREEALTEATEARS !

FTEEEAEME
KRTAEEEETEAB S (BERR
RAESFIMNZ &8 BBERIE VB HRE
PizE13

Rental expenses paid to related companies (note (i)

Sales of food to related companies (note (ii)) RS FE

2012 2011
—B--F —T——%

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER THT

2,720 4,354

(i) 33,153 27,189
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35. Related Party and Connected Transactions

(Continued)

(i)

The rental expenses were paid to:

@)

N.W.P. Investments Limited (“N.W.P. Investments”)
is an associate of Mr. Ng Wing Po (Mr. Ng). Mr. Ng is
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company
and a director of N.W.P. Investments. The rental
expenses were based on the agreement signed with
the Group. Such related party transaction also
constituted a connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactor has
been no longer involved by the Group since the
disposal of the subsidiary as disclosed in note 36
during the year.

Hon Po Investment Limited of which directors of
certain subsidiaries of the Company have a beneficial
interest. The rental expenses were based on the
tenancy agreements signed with the Group.

The Group has the sales transactions with the following
related companies during the year ended 31 December
2012 and 2011.

35. MEA T RBEERS (#)

() MeRXIHNET:

@ EREBBRAR(ARRE])
RBRNR(TREE]D ZBEA -
REERAREE THERA
LER  WRKEREZES -
H & 5 S Th R 15 B K 65 (8 P 3%
Rl AT E - BB A LR
ZIEK ETARAIE VAT E
BLHERS - ARAKER
REZHEM B QR (WARE36
Fri) - MR H T BESAE
o

b)) EEREBRRAA HARFA
ETHEBARZCEERAER
B HERIXDREBEANE
BRI 2 HEBHEASE -

(i) BE_ZT——FR_Z—F+-A
=+ —HIEFE  ASEEET5IA
BALTETHERS -

2012 2011

—E——F —E——5F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Bestcase Hong Kong Limited BEEBBRAFA 1,495 3,399
Dragongem Development Limited RBZEERARAT 7,330 5,352
Jing Hua (Allied) Limited RE (BE)BRAR 7,413 6,726
Twin Star Investments Limited EEREARAA 5,766 5,040
Metropolis Harbour View Chinese Cuisine Limited =& AR A A 8,936 6,672
Ocean Grace Investments Limited EFRERRAR] 2,213 -
33,153 27,189
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35. Related Party and Connected Transactions

36.

140 CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED = Bl /BRI 3 A 15 2 7]

(Continued)

As stated in note 36, Ocean Grace Investments Limited (“OGIL")
was the subsidiary of the Group until 31 July 2012, the date of
disposal, OGIL is disposed to Speedy Fortune Limited of which
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company have a
beneficial interest. After the date of disposal, the Disposal
Company is a related company of the Group.

As stated in note 27, directors of certain subsidiaries of the
Company have a beneficial interest in Twin Star Investments
Limited. As a result, the company is a related company of the
Group.

Disposal of Assets and Liabilities of a
Disposal Company Held for Sale

In December 2011, the board resolved to dispose the shares
and all the interest, benefits and rights of OGIL to Speedy
Fortune Limited at a consideration of HK$5,900,000. OGIL
engaged in the Chinese restaurant business in Hong Kong. The
disposal was approved at the extraordinary general meeting
dated 20 July 2012 and the disposal completed on 31 July 2012.

35.

36.

BBRATIRBERS @)

BT RE36 PRl - SR F R BEBR AR([R
EREDEE-T——F+tA=+—HB(H
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BEHETFREGRAR ' ZARBAAAR]
ETHBARICESHAERER - NEE
HE% - HERARARASEE ZBENR]

BN sE27 it - AR EETF
%%%ﬁé&ﬁﬁm T%ﬁ? o ey
AR ANEEZEEAR

HERFFHEZHEQREER
=R

RZZT——%+"H BEIFRAAKESR
RAREERFRENRD RAE#ER - 7

= RER - R (B /5,900,000 7T o JRFIKR
EREBNERNEREY - ZHEFER

R —FL A THORRENIAS L&
BHEIR -_T——"FELtA=+—HEAR
5o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn e M B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——fF+-H=+—HIFFE

36. Disposal of Assets and Liabilities of a
Disposal Company Held for Sale (continued)

The fair value of the assets and liabilities at the date of disposal

36. HERIEHECZHELNREER
=L4C ),

ZEEERBERHE BN R FEED

were as follows: T
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHETT
Assets held for sale disposed of: EHERIELEEE -
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 1,526
Rental deposits Hekse 759
Inventories =& 297
Trade and other receivables JE Ui % L A fE U SR IE 587
Cash and bank balances R4 RRTEE 3,017
6,186
Liabilities held for sale disposed of; BEHERIELEET
Trade and other payables P R E b A 3R IE (6,114)
(6,114)
Net assets BEFE 72
Satisfied by: BAT R -
Total consideration wRE (5,900)
Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities HEREHECEER
held for sale B ERE (5,828)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEAMIES T ASEE
Total cash consideration received BUIE R ERE 5,900
Deposit received in prior year ERIFEERIES (2,000)
Less: cash and bank balances disposed off — jg : 2 &R RIRTTAE (3,017)
Add: cash and bank balances included in mn: EpFEEF ASEEE 2
assets held for sales in prior year BEZRE MIRTTHERS 2,709
3,592
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36. Disposal of Assets and Liabilities of a 36. HEFFEHEZHERREER
Disposal Company Held for Sale (continued) aE®w
The disposal does not constitute a discontinued operation as HEZETIMERERIEEEER - HHRR
the disposal does not represent discontinuance of a major line HESHEIIAMMEEF - BEEXZBEKIE
of business or geographical area of operation. s R EE TS -

37. Capital Risk Management 37. EXEMERE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are: AEBBEREAZARR !
o To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going . REAEEREFTESE  BELBBRR
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concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

° To support the Group's stability and growth; and

o To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group's risk management capability.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company only, comprising share capital and
reserves of HK$396,056,000 (2011: HK$396,056,000) and
HK$3,039,938,000 (2011: HK$3,047,334,000) respectively as at
31 December 2012.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group has not adopted any formal dividend
policy. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. For details
of cash flow forecast carried out by the directors, please refer
to note 3(b) “Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption”.

K E TS E A D Bl 2K = 8 5 A

2
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38. Financial Risk Management

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group
is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in
the normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price

risk.

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Except for the
financial assets held for trading, the refundable deposits
and the loan receivables that were further explained in
note 23, 24 and 25 respectively, the Group principal
financial assets are bank balances placed with reputable
banks. Given their high credit standing, management does
not expect any credit risk exposure for those bank
balances. For credit exposures to customers, Group
management has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
Sales to restaurant customers were settled in cash or
through credit cards. For credit exposures associated with
the refundable deposits and loan receivables, Group
management had assessed the credit quality of the
debtors, taking into account their financial position, their
business developments and other factors. In addition, the
Group ensures that the amount of the loan is within the
limit set by the Group.
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38. Financial Risk Management (continued) 38. MR EE (&)

(b)

(c)
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Liquidity risk

The Group has net current liabilities of approximately
HK$9,911,000 at 31 December 2012. The directors have
carried out a detailed review of the cash flow forecast of
the Group for the eighteen months ending 30 June 2014
taking into account the financial support from the major
shareholder and other measures taken by the
management as referred to in notes 3(b) to the financial
statements, and consider that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for the twelve months from 31
December 2012.

The maturity dates of all financial liabilities are within one
year as at the end of each reporting period, except for
certain other payable and convertible notes as disclosed
in notes 26 and 29 related to acquisition of subsidiaries
which is interest free with maturity date over one year.
The contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities equal their carrying amounts as shown on the
statements of financial position as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing financial
liabilities, and the financial assets are bank balances held
with financial institutions. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rate.

(b)
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38. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency
exchange rates relates primarily to certain inter-company
balances in currencies other than the functional currency
of the group entity to which the balances relate. The
currency giving rise to this risk is primarily Hong Kong
Dollar.

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a 3%
weakening/strengthen of the Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi would have decrease/increase loss before
income tax by HK$1,487,000 (2011: HK$15,773,000). This
sensitivity analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity instruments classified as trading securities. All of
these investments are listed.

The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy and sell trading
securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that of
the Index and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in
terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the
limits set by the Group.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of
reporting period. If equity price had been 5% higher, the
loss for the year ended 31 December 2012 would have
been decreased by HK$7,000 (2011: HK$8,000). Had the
relevant equity price been 5% lower, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the loss.

(d)

(e)
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38. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(f)  Fair value of financial instruments

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure for financial instruments that
are carried at fair value by level of the following fair value

measurement hierarchy:

Level1T — Quoted price (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level2 — Inputs other than quoted price included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly or

indirectly.

Level3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group’s financial
assets held for trading as disclosed in note 23 are
measured at fair value, which is categorised as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and measured
fair value based on Level 1 fair value measurement
hierarchy, except for suspended investment which is
measured based on Level 3 fair value measurement

hierarch.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, suspended
investment of HK$5,332,000 was transferred from Level 1
to Level 3, and with no purchases or sales of this
investment during the year ended 31 December 2012 and
2011. Fair value loss of HK$3,106,000 (2011: HK$3,555,000)
is recognised in profit or loss during the year. There were
no transfers between instruments in Level 2 and Level 3

during both years.
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39. Financial Assets and Liabilities 39. cREERAE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and rEECREERBER_Z——FR-ZF
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2012 and 2011 may be — T+ A=+ AmRZEAEBERHE
categorised as follows: W
Carrying amounts
RREE
2012 2011
—B--f —Z——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTAT
Financial assets SREE
Fair value through profit or loss held for trading BAFEENERIIRRFEER 2,372 5,487
Loan and receivables (including ER R EMFIE
cash and bank balances) (BER L RRTEH) 340,084 396,763
Financial liabilities cREas
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost BRERERATECZERAE 578,382 595,094
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Results 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
EF —B-=f —_T—% _T-FTF _TTNF _TT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET T FHEIT FHT
Turnover S 61,951 73,876 85,376 161,840 339,225
Loss before income tax BRETS R RIEE (41,483) (127,164) (50,987) (11,950) (356,829)
Income tax credits FTiSTiE 5,138 4,328 = = =
Loss before non-controlling RaETIEE R A BT 18
interests (36,345) (122,836) (50,987) (11,950) (356,829)
Non-controlling interests JESE R AE RS - - - _ _
Loss for the year REEFEE (36,345)  (122,836) (50,987) (11,950) (356,829)
Assets and liabilities 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
BEREE —E--f —T——% ZZT-TF ZTTHF ZTITN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEHE 4,015,268 4,048,378 958,439 692,179 490,817
Total liabilities BE%E (578,521) (604,235) (52,028) (52,686) (69,341)
Non-controlling interests FEE R (753) (753) (753) (753) (753)
Attributable to owners of RRRER AEMHL
the Company 3,435,994 3,443,390 905,658 638,740 420,723
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